Lancashire County Council
Health Scrutiny Committee

Tuesday, 14th May, 2019 at 10.30 am in Cabinet Room 'C' - The Duke of
Lancaster Room, County Hall, Preston

Agenda
Part | (Open to Press and Public)
No. Item

1. Apologies

2. Disclosure of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary
Interests

Members are asked to consider any Pecuniary and
Non-Pecuniary Interests they may have to disclose to
the meeting in relation to matters under consideration
on the Agenda.

3. Minutes of the Meeting Held on 2 April 2019 (Pages 1 - 6)

4. Social Prescribing (Pages 7 - 60)

5. The issue of Period Poverty and how it can best be (Pages 61 - 64)
addressed

6. Report of the Health Scrutiny Steering Group (Pages 65 - 74)

7. Health Scrutiny Committee Work Programme (Pages 75 - 96)
2018/19

8. Urgent Business

An item of urgent business may only be considered
under this heading where, by reason of special
circumstances to be recorded in the Minutes, the Chair
of the meeting is of the opinion that the item should be
considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.
Wherever possible, the Chief Executive should be
given advance warning of any Member’s intention to
raise a matter under this heading.

Lancashire
County ‘@9?.
Council (&Z‘;:%?



9. Date of Next Meeting

The next meeting of the Health Scrutiny Committee will
be held on Tuesday 2 July 2019 at 10.30am at County
Hall, Preston.

L Sales

Director of Corporate Services
County Hall
Preston



Agenda ltem 3

Lancashire County Council

Health Scrutiny Committee

Minutes of the Meeting held on Tuesday, 2nd April, 2019 at 10.30 am in
Cabinet Room 'C' - The Duke of Lancaster Room, County Hall, Preston
Present:

County Councillor Peter Britcliffe (Chair)

County Councillors

J Burrows E Nash

N Hennessy M Pattison
S Holgate E Pope

H Khan C Towneley
S C Morris

Co-opted members

Councillor Margaret Brindle, (Burnley Borough
Council)

Councillor David Borrow, (Preston City Council)
Councillor Bridget Hilton, (Ribble Valley Borough
Council)

Councillor G Hodson, (West Lancashire Borough
Council)

Councillor Alistair Morwood, (Chorley Borough
Council)

1. Apologies

Apologies were received from County Councillors Gina Dowding and Charles
Edwards and Councillors Barbara Ashworth, Rossendale Council, Glen Harrison,
Hyndburn Borough Council, Colin Hartley, Lancaster City Council, Julie
Robinson, Wyre Council, Matthew Tomlinson, South Ribble Borough Council and
Viv Willder, Fylde Council.

2. Disclosure of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests

None were disclosed.

3. Minutes of the Meeting Held on 5 February 2019

In response to a request the Chair agreed to write to NHS colleagues regarding
the Lancashire and South Cumbria Transforming Care Partnership Update
presented at the Health Scrutiny Committee held on 11 December 2018.

The chair would ask for a response to unanswered questions raised, as the clerk
had been unsuccessful in securing a reply.

Page 1



Resolved: That the minutes from the meeting held on 5 February 2019 be
confirmed as an accurate record and signed by the Chair.

4, Housing with Care and Support Strategy 2018 - 2025

The Chair welcomed Lancashire County Council officers: Joanne Reed, Head of
Service for Policy, Information & Commissioning (Live Well), Craig Frost, Policy,
Information and Commissioning Manager (Age Well) and Julie Dockerty, Policy,
Information and Commissioning Senior Manager.

The report presented provided an update on the implementation of the county
council's Housing with Care and Support Strategy for 2018 — 2025.

The Committee provided feedback regarding the draft Strategy, as presented and
sought further clarification as follows:

e Members commented that the key investigations from the consultation
centred on working with developers and service providers, rather than
meaningful engagement with families. The consultation responses showed
that only 21% of feedback on the draft strategy was from family members,
members of the public or unspecified, meaning that the most vulnerable had
not been reached for their comments. Officers countered that although the
exact number of family members who had responded could not be confirmed,
a significant number had been family members. Regular local meetings with
stakeholders and family members had taken place to share information and
establish common concerns and a number of mechanisms had been put in
place such as a Transfer and Challenge group to engage those who would be
affected. It was also confirmed that the initial work had been at a strategic
level and this would be followed by more detailed work by Social Care officers
regarding gathering information about individuals' circumstances for the next
stage.

e Concerns were expressed regarding the risk assessment of housing
providers' finances which had been raised by the Care Quality Commission
(CQC) and the Regulator of Social Housing. It was clarified that the district
council partners would need to comment on this and that the county council
were awaiting further guidance from central government regarding equity-
linked supported housing.

e The vision and strategic aims of the previous strategy had also committed to
having at least one extra care scheme per district. Members asked why only a
third of districts had implemented this. Officers clarified that many of the
issues causing a lack of confidence in the market from developers and
registered providers, arising from welfare reforms had now been resolved.
Districts were committed to developing extra care schemes and there was an
enthusiasm to move forward and make investments.

The schemes relied on funding from Homes England and other partners.
However Lancashire County Council may make a financial contribution for
high priority areas, where there was a strategic need for a service which could
not proceed without such a capital contribution.

Page 2



Members stated that the focus of provision of extra care units for older adults
should be prioritised according to need rather than aiming for an additional
one per district. The report indicated that some districts already had some
units in existence or were being developed, when others had none. Officers
clarified that the county council was undertaking a needs analysis at both
district and neighbourhood level to determine the number of care schemes
required, in terms of risk and need according to health and social care data.
The county council also needed to consider what land opportunities were
available in the districts. The aim of one unit per district was a starting point
and the additional needs analysis would highlight where more were needed.

Members requested that data detailing estimated numbers of units needed
compared to the number already in existence or under development, be
provided for the supported places for young adults with disabilities.

Members expressed concern that the data indicated that currently only 16.5%
of need for older adult care units had been met and suggested that county
council work with planning authorities (district councils) to ensure housing
developers were required to provide a percentage of supported housing. In
response to a question it was clarified that the flat scheme for younger adults
with disabilities largely consisted of renovating existing buildings. Members
commented that district councils need to be more involved at the planning
stage and suggested including district council members on the Transfer and
Challenge group.

Members asked how supporting services peripheral to the strategy, e.g. public
transport, would be considered as part of the strategy. It was confirmed that
access to facilities, either on site or close by would be built into the
specifications to mitigate the risk of isolation.

In response to further questions it was confirmed that:

Work was being undertaken to identify the population profile per district. The
county council had secured consultants from the Local Government
Association to look at the approach to development and this included taking
into account an environmentally sound methodology for provision.

Assistive technology would include a range of devices to assist with falls
management and included mobile technology to support interaction in the
community. There was an increased focus on introducing assistive technology
and it was necessary that this was kept up to date. This gave an opportunity
to support respite for family members by giving them peace of mind.

The county council had worked with L'Arche (a charity that offered support for
adults with learning disabilities) on a flat scheme in Preston. It was
acknowledged that housing schemes away from communities could be
isolated, but conversely a scheme within a community had the potential for
residents to be taken advantage of. Some would be integrated depending on

Page 3



the needs of the residents. The county council would act on the advice of
providers and developers with the necessary expertise when planning sites
and facilities.

The establishment of a task and finish group to review the strategy in more detail
was suggested. In considering the suggestion it was felt that the Committee's
Steering Group be asked to consider the request in the first instance.

Resolved: That the Health Scrutiny Committee;

1. The intention to promote the development of more extra care schemes for
older adults and flat schemes for younger adults with disabilities be
supported.

2. The request for a task and finish group to the Health Scrutiny Steering group
to review the Housing with Care and Support Strategy in more detail be
considered by the Health Scrutiny Steering Group at its earliest convenience.

3. Noted with concern the discrepancies between planned development
compared with the estimated units needed.

5. Whyndyke Garden Village Healthy New Town

The Chair welcomed Allan Oldfield, Chair of Healthy New Town Board and Chief
Executive of Fylde Council and Lancashire County Council Officer Andrea Smith,
Public Health Specialist.

The report presented provided an update on the NHS Healthy New Towns
Programme, its inception and up to date position, as well as an overview on the
proposed Whyndyke Garden Village Healthy New Town in the Fylde district and
the development of Homes for Life Long Living.

In response to questions it was confirmed that:

e Currently there were no elected members or health representatives from NHS
Foundation Trusts on the Board, however this could be considered at the
annual review of membership. The board did link in with NHS providers and
Clinical Commissioning Groups and representatives were involved and
attended meetings depending on the relevance of the discussion to their
expertise.

e Five expressions of interest had been received from developers and all were
aware of the inclusion of the ten healthy living principles in the Section 106
agreement and the additional implications of the project as outlined in the
report.

¢ Members stated that initiatives such as community park runs and working to
increase physical activity in schools were already in place across the county

Page 4



and questioned whether this would be encouraged within the project. This
was an NHS initiative and the Board would work with developers to design the
area and use the environment to support healthy and sustainable methods of
travel. Health initiatives would be piloted to engage the community.

e With regards to timings, the design and infrastructure would be finalised with
the developer once this was announced. Additional grants for an early
community facility would also be discussed at this stage to promote
community cohesion from the beginning.

e The current plan was for 1450 properties to home in the region of 3,500-3,700
people. However this could increase as there was some adjacent commercial
land that may not be required for its original intended purpose.

e During initial planning, the Board had looked at best practice and learning
points from other similar successful and unsuccessful preceding projects. The
key learning point was influencing behaviour change in terms of self-care of
physical, mental and spiritual wellbeing. The programme aimed to improve
attitudes, behaviours and lifestyle in terms of health, including the use of
digital resources.

e Environmentally sound innovations were also included in the principals of the
Section 106 agreement for both the properties and the public infrastructure.
Homes for Life Long Living included adaptations such as digital 'plumbing' to
ensure homes were enabled for digital assistance as and when needed.
National funding would be accessed for change management, for example
ensuring families and practitioners were upskilled to use assistive technology.

e The position of the site meant that it would easily integrate into the wider
network of other local cycle routes. It was requested that the paths were made
multi-use to incorporate the needs of all non—motorised users, not just walkers
and cyclists. Currently the Board was debating how the site could be linked to
neighbouring communities as it was currently isolated by a motorway and dual
carriageway.

It was noted that the Home for Life Long Living standard had not been embedded
into all Lancashire district councils' Local Plans. Additionally, it was reported that
not all district councils across Lancashire had been asked to embed the ten
Healthy Living Principles into future Section 106 Agreements.

Resolved: That

1. The achievements made by collaborative working with partners be
acknowledged.

2. In order to support Health in All Policies, the Cabinet Member for Health

and Wellbeing give consideration to writing to all Lancashire's district
councils, except Fylde requesting them to consider:

Page 5



a) Embedding the principles of Home for Life Long Living (adaptable
homes standards) into their Local Plans.

b) Embedding the ten Healthy Living Principles into future Section 106
Agreements.

c) Ensuring that multi-user paths proposed in future developments cover
all non-motorised users and also extend to the wider network.

6. Report of the Health Scrutiny Steering Group

The report presented provided an overview of matters presented and considered
by the Health Scrutiny Steering Group at its meetings held on 20 February 2019
and 13 March 2019.

Resolved: That the report of the Steering Group be received.

7. Health Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2018/19

The Work Programmes for both the Health Scrutiny Committee and its Steering
Group were presented to the Committee.

Resolved: that the report be noted.

8. Urgent Business

There were no items of Urgent Business.

9. Date of Next Meeting

The next meeting of the Health Scrutiny Committee will be held on Tuesday 14
May 2019 at 10.30am in Cabinet Room C — The Duke of Lancaster Room,

County Hall, Preston.

L Sales
Director of Corporate Services

County Hall
Preston

Page 6



Agenda ltem 4

Health Scrutiny Committee
Meeting to be held on Tuesday, 14 May 2019

Electoral Division affected:
(All Divisions);

Social Prescribing
(Appendices 'A' and 'B' refer)

Contact for further information:
Gary Halsall, Tel: (01772) 536989, Senior Democratic Services Officer (Overview
and Scrutiny), gary.halsall@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

An overview of the key programmes of work (underway and proposed) for
developing the digital infrastructure to support local social prescribing programmes
across Lancashire and South Cumbria Integrated Care System (ICS).

Recommendation

The Health Scrutiny Committee is asked to note and comment on the report.

Background and Advice

Linda Vernon, Healthier Lancashire and South Cumbria and Michelle Pilling, East
Lancashire Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) will attend the meeting to present
an overview of the current position and plans for developing the digital infrastructure
to support local social prescribing programmes across Lancashire and South
Cumbria Integrated Care System (ICS). A summary of this is set out at Appendix A.
Detailed background information to this work is set out at Appendix B.

The Health Scrutiny Committee is asked to note and comment on the report.
Consultations

N/A

Implications:

This item has the following implications, as indicated:

Risk management

The reports at Appendices A and B represent the views of Healthier Lancashire and
South Cumbria and are not those of Lancashire County Council.

ir
Lancastic
Council (?,g:;.s\?

Page 7



Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel
None
Reason for inclusion in Part Il, if appropriate

N/A

Page 8



Appendix A

s Healthier
‘ Lancashire &
A" South Cumbria

Digital Social Prescribing Summary ~ presented to

LCC Health Scrutiny Committee 14" May 2019

1. Introduction

1.1.

1.2.

This document summarises the key programmes of work (underway and
proposed) for developing the digital infrastructure to support local social
prescribing programmes across Lancashire and South Cumbria Integrated
Care System (ICS).

NHS England published its plans for implementing the Comprehensive Model
of Personalised Care in January 2019, which sets out the full array of different

delivery support actions that will be taken nationally to ensure effective
implementation.

The Comprehensive Model has six main evidence based components:

0] shared decision-making;

(i) enabling choice, including legal rights to choice;

(i)  personalised care and support planning;

(iv)  social prescribing and community-based support;

(v) supported self-management; and

(vi)  personal health budgets and integrated personal budgets.

The deployment of these six components will deliver:

Whole-population approaches to supporting people of all ages and
their carers to manage their physical and mental health and wellbeing,
build community resilience, and make informed decisions and choices
when their health changes.

A proactive and universal offer of support to people with long-term
physical and mental health conditions to build knowledge, skills and
confidence and to live well with their health conditions.

Intensive and integrated approaches to empowering people with more
complex needs to have greater choice and control over the care they
receive.

Digital is a key enabler for transformation and for supporting a more strategic,
system-wide approach to social prescribing.

1.3.Under the Additional Roles Reimbursement Scheme, Primary Care Networks
will soon (July 2019) be supported to develop one new Link Worker post (up
to Band 5) per neighbourhood. The Comprehensive Model outlined above,
including the development of link worker posts is expected to benefit 2.5

Page 9


https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/01/universal-personalised-care.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/01/universal-personalised-care.pdf

» Healthier
‘ Lancashire &
A" South Cumbria
million people across England by 2023/24, including over 900,000 referrals
for social prescribing, which can be extrapolated as almost 28,000 referrals
across Lancashire and South Cumbria.

The expectation is that social prescribing and community-based support, if
delivered according to this standard model, will result in:

e 100% of GPs and GP practices able to involve link workers in practice
meetings and making referrals to them.
e 90% of link workers receiving accredited training and feeling confident
in carrying out their role.
e 80% of people taking up their social prescription after referral
e A positive impact on GP consultations, A&E attendances and wellbeing
for those referred, achieving:
* 14% fewer GP appointments
+  12% fewer A&E attendances

Digital tools will enhance the quality of offer and the productivity of these link
workers, allowing them seamless referral mechanisms with outcomes
reporting, affording them time to conduct meaningful person-centred
coaching conversations with their patients based around “what matters to
you?”

1.4. Healthier Lancashire and South Cumbria have been a NHS England
demonstrator site for Universal Personalised Care since April 2018. Digital is
seen as a key enabler for social prescribing developments, alongside the link
worker posts. As such, the Personalised Care demonstrator site steering group
requested an overview of the social prescribing landscape (including but not
limited to, digital) across the system, and this paper made recommendations for
further development. These recommendations can be found in the
accompanying paper, and are illustrated in section 2.1 below.

The demonstrator site programme is currently developing plans to support
neighbourhoods in 3 CCGs (in East Lancashire, Central Lancashire and Fylde
Coast) to pilot the social prescribing referral software Elemental, as a proof of
concept of front end transactional (referral management and outcomes
reporting) software used in a clinical setting. If successful, local commissioning
arrangements would need to be made to scale up this approach across the
wider neighbourhood footprint.

Page 10


https://elementalsoftware.co/

” Il:lealthierh' %
ancasnire
b :
4.*’ South Cumbria
1.5. Our Digital Future’, sets out the local strategic direction and the design

principles which form this programme of work. Fundamental to our approach,
will be the co-creation of solutions with patients, the public, and our frontline.

This process is already under way, with the formation of a community of
practice for social prescribing, where the ideas within this paper have been
reviewed by stakeholders including the Personalised Care Co-Production
Group. Some exploratory work assessing the digital maturity of the VCFS is
already under way and is outlined in 2.3 below.

2. Delivery plan

2.1. A model for developing a strategic approach to social prescribing across the
system has been worked up with some stakeholders and is illustrated below
and outlined in the subsequent points:

‘Transacting’
interface

Directory of
services

Co-design

Mg;:irnegnf;iej?ﬁ;tvs ] ‘Clinical’ Integration:
Community service needs Federated Dos: LIl:Ik.WOI'kerS Elemental
Digital interface needs Collect Clinical staff Strata / IEG4
Admin
: Once VCFS il
Third sector needs: e
Digital maturity Public facing:
assessment Nun."nber of Everybody’s Citizens Advice Portal
L= business Our Lancashire
Professional stakehold CVS websites / MARS
roressional stakenolaer .
needs & ownership: Approved assurers Patient activation Apps (e.g. Mobile Age)

Engagement event

Innovation: Al chatbot ...

| Crowd-sourcing data I Health coaching

2.2. Itis implicit in any digital developments that co-designing with citizens will form
the basis of those developments. The ICS digital team are exploring
collaboration opportunities with Lancaster University to conduct some user
research, exploring the journeys an individual person might make to access the
resources in their community, the information that can support them in making
that journey, and how digital can support this. Further, the existing
Personalised Care strategic co-production group will be used to sense-check
proposals with people who have lived experience on an ongoing basis.

! our Digital Future - L&SC Digital Strategy

Page 11


https://www.healthierlsc.co.uk/news-and-events/latest-news/lets-get-personal-lancashire-and-south-cumbria-co-production-group
https://www.healthierlsc.co.uk/news-and-events/latest-news/lets-get-personal-lancashire-and-south-cumbria-co-production-group
https://www.healthierlsc.co.uk/application/files/8615/4322/1034/Healthier_Lancashire_and_South_Cumbria_-_Our_Digital_Future.pdf

2.3.

2.4.

» Healthier
‘ Lancashire &

A" South Cumbria
The ICS digital team have partnered with Active Lancashire to undertake a
digital maturity and ‘social prescribing readiness’ assessment of the third
sector/VCFS, with a particular focus on small, grass roots organisations. The
project will run during quarters 1&2 of 2019/20 and will be reported back to the
digital team for wider dissemination and to inform future iterations of the ICS
digital plan. The aims are to:

i.  Provide a picture of the digital maturity of VCFS organisations in
Lancashire in order to help inform the digital strategy for Healthier
Lancashire and South Cumbria.

ii.  Provide an understanding of VCFS organisations interest, readiness and
support requirements to be part of a social prescribing programme.

The objectives regarding digital maturity assessment are to:

e Understand the current ‘digital picture’ within the VCFS.

e Explore the VCFS willingness to display their offer in a digital format.

e Understand the barriers that VCFS organisations have to presenting
their ‘offer’ in a digital manner.

e |dentify areas of support that VCFS organisations need to present their
offer digitally.

The objectives regarding the wider aspects of social prescribing are to:

e Understand the willingness of VCFS organisations to be involved in a
social prescribing programme.

e Understand the barriers that VCFS organisations perceive to being
involved in a social prescribing programme.

e Identify areas of support and development that VCFS organisations may
need to be part of a social prescribing programme.

The results of this study will be used to inform future iterations of the digital
delivery plan, and to assist in identifying partners to support service directory
data collection. The report may well also identify the resource input that
organisations feel they need to engage in social prescribing programmes.

Central to any future social prescribing developments is the creation and
maintenance of a single hyper-local place-based Directory of Services (DoS).
This will address the challenges of multiple small DoS, the inherent costs of
duplication, and issues regarding accuracy and currency of service data.

The benefits of this approach are discussed in detail in the paper referenced
above but the simple aim is to maintain a single reliable place-based directory

Page 12


https://www.activelancashire.org.uk/

y Healthier
‘ Lancashire &
A South Cumbria

i

of hyper-local services which can feed the service (open) data to many frontline
applications seeking to help people and frontline professionals find appropriate
support services. The outcomes of this approach include:

e Frontline applications have access to reliable hyper-local service data
e Savings from public sector spend on data collection
e Ability to aggregate data across organisational and geographical

boundaries

A conceptual model of a hyper-local place-based DoS is illustrated below
(credit Digital Gaps).

i

Service Data
Consumer
NHS 111

‘o

Bulk Service data
provider

Contributes a larger
list of services
collected by another
means

&

Volunteer data

collector

?
~
:

Service User
Citizen, Carer, Professional

Citizens, carers and frontline workers can choose which
application they want to use

- -a - -
ala aln ] aia
Service Data Service Data Service Data Service Data
Consumer Consumer Consumer Consumer
Elemental IEG4 NHS App LVP

The hyper-local services data is made available to many frontline
application for them to use it for their own purposes

Data is collected, tagged and assured ONCe on behalf
of the place

< %

Data assurance partner Service Provider

i

Service Data
Consumer
Well Skem

o S

Place Administrator

Governs the
configuration of the
place i.e. assurance
definition, meta tags

2
g

Assurer

2.5. Concurrent to the digital developments under way or proposed is a further
programme of work to develop link worker posts as outlined above, and to
continue to train existing frontline staff in methods and tools to support self-
management such as health coaching and the use of the patient activation
measure. This will support better social prescribing decision making and
identification of the support needed for individuals to succeed in making the
most of a social prescribing referral. Lancashire and South Cumbria are doing
a considerable amount of work in the area under the Personalised Care

workstream, and are mentoring leads from other parts of the country.

Page 13


https://digitalgaps.co.uk/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/ourwork/patient-participation/self-care/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/ourwork/patient-participation/self-care/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/ourwork/patient-participation/self-care/patient-activation/pa-faqs/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/ourwork/patient-participation/self-care/patient-activation/pa-faqs/

2.6.

2.7.

2.8.

Healthier
{ N Lancashire &

A" South Cumbria
Many different public and professional-facing products can then consume data
from the central directory and surface it in a manner that suits public /
professional needs. Elemental is currently the product that offers the most
complete package for clinical and professional users, and as outlined above, is
due to be piloted in 3 neighbourhoods across the ICS.

Evaluation of the pilot sites and the different strategies of facilitating the journey
from an individual or health care professional identifying a need or desire to
access community resources, to the actual connection being made, following
through to measuring the outcome of that connection, will help identify
successes and areas for improvement, strategies worth spreading and scaling,
and which digital opportunities support the processes best.

Benefits of this system-wide approach to social prescribing include but are not
limited to:

A. Benefits to the public / patients:

. Accurate, reliable and current information available on the services
that matter to them and that meet their needs and circumstances
. Choice in the way they find and access community resources

(multiple possible website and app interfaces all accessing a single
version of the truth)
o More time having conversations that matter with link workers or
health care professionals (HCPs)
B. Benefits to referrers (link workers, HCPs, public health practitioners,
VCES staff and volunteers)

o Seamless workflow between clinical and social prescribing systems
. Easy access to information to inform choices and decisions

o Ability to see where a patient or service user is up to on their journey
. Outcomes monitoring to help identify the impact of social prescribing

on individuals
C. Benefits to organisations

o Ability to analyse service directory information & utilisation to identify
demand, service gaps and inform commissioning decisions

. Ability to analyse wellbeing and/or clinical outcome measures via
referral systems (such as Elemental) to assess the impact of social
prescribing programmes

o Ability of VCFS organisations to demonstrate the impact they are
creating and potentially the positive economic or social impact they
are creating

Page 14



#Pm Healthier
’ Lancashire &
4™ South Cumbria

3. Conclusion

In summary, this digital social prescribing plan seeks to develop a strategic
approach to social prescribing that employs system-wide digital infrastructure
and co-design principles to support enhanced local delivery. This is building on
existing pieces of work and the great success of many long-established grass-
roots programmes that have been supporting our public since long before the
term social prescribing was coined. This cannot happen in isolation from the
work that needs to happen in order to sustain and develop that often fragile
third sector who are supporting our public and patients in the community.

“If social prescribing is going to work, | think leaders of commissioning
organisations (and in the future, integrated care systems) need to be serious
about their role in supporting a vibrant voluntary and community sector, over

and above investing in specific services.”

Beccy Baird, Kings Fund Blog

Page 15


https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/blog/2018/12/social-prescribing-part-something-bigger

Page 16



Appendix B

” II:Iealthierh_ &
ancashire
fi’ South Cumbria

An overview of Social Prescribing in
Lancashire and South Cumbria and
appraisal of digital options to support

delivery
April 2019

Version 1.2

Blackpool Council é AALLIDLIS m
wom s commrionns BUACKBURN - gty Council

DARWEN

Page 17



Healthier

[ Lancashire &
AW South Cumbria
Contents
Section Title Page
1 Background 3
1.1 What is social prescribing and why do we need it? 3
1.2 Commissioning and funding for social prescribing schemes 5
1.3 Delivery models for social prescribing 6
1.4 Impact of social prescribing 6
1.4.1 Cost effectiveness and impact on healthcare resource utilisation 7
1.4.2 Clinical and Wellbeing Outcome measures 8
2 Overview of the (Digital) Social Prescribing landscape across 9
Lancashire and South Cumbria
2.1 Bay Health and Care Partners 10
2.2 Pennine Lancashire 11
2.3 Central Lancashire 13
2.4 West Lancashire 14
2.5 Fylde Coast 15
3 Digital social prescribing platforms 18
3.1 Defining standards 18
3.1.1 IT requirements for personalised care 18
3.1.2 Local government association data standards 19
3.1.3 Quality standards for service providers 20
3.2 Local digital requirements to support social prescribing, identified 21
by stakeholder engagement
3.3 Digital social prescribing platforms currently/imminently deployed 22
3.3.1 Elemental 23
3.3.1.1 Overview 23
3.3.1.2 Clinical / social utility 23
3.3.1.3 Data reporting 24
3.3.1.4 Technical / integration 25
3.3.2 Strata 26
3.3.2.1 Overview 26
3.3.2.2  Clinical / social utility 27
3.3.2.3 Data reporting 28
3.3.2.4  Technical / integration 28
3.3.3 Refernet 29
3.3.3.1  Overview 29
3.3.3.2 Clinical / social utility 30
3.3.3.3 Data reporting 31
3.3.3.4 Technical / integration 32
Page 2

Page 18



3.4

3.4.1
3.4.2
3.4.3

3.4.4
3.4.5

4.1

4.2
4.3

5.1

5.2
5.3

Healthier

[ Lancashire &
AW South Cumbria
Other platforms/models outside the scope of detailed discussion 32

in this paper

IEG4 32

Our Lancashire 32

FYI Directory 34
MECCLink 35

Active Lancashire 35

Other considerations 37
Integration with existing and proposed HLSC digital 37
developments

Digital literacy of third sector organisations 37
Co-production and digital delivery planning 37
Recommendations 39
Proposed investment opportunities within Personalised Care 39
demonstrator site year (2018/19)

Wider considerations / potential collaborators 39
Recommendations 41

1. Background
This paper was prepared as part of the Healthier Lancashire and South Cumbria
Personalised Care Demonstrator Site, supported by NHS England, 2018-2019. It was
written for presentation to the Personalised Care steering group, chaired by Dr Sakthi
Karunanithi, and is designed to:

e provide an overview of the current status of social prescribing across the region

e compare digital products to support the social prescribing process and

¢ make recommendations to support the further development of social prescribing

projects across the region.

Key points are made in bold throughout the document.

1.1 What is social prescribing and why do we need it?
There is an increasing body of evidence to support the impact of wider behavioural
and social determinants on health and wellbeing, including lifestyle behaviours,
mood, social inclusion and loneliness, employability, financial and debt situations. It
has been estimated that healthcare input may represent as little as 15% of the total
determinant of health with genetic, health behaviour, socioeconomic circumstances
and environmental exposure contributing the remainder.

Page 3

Page 19



Healthier
’ Lancashire &
AW South Cumbria

Determinants of Health: *

Living and
working
conditions

/7@ \\ Water and
4, \\sanitation
e\

\ T\
W \Health care
| services

Age, sex and |Housing
and food \ constitutional /
production \ factors / /

Further, it is estimated that approximately 20% of patients consult their general
practitioner (GP) for what is primarily a social problem (Low Commission, 20152).
These non-medical factors often present alongside one or more long term conditions.
In England, more than 15 million people have at least one long-term condition (LTC).
This group tend to be heavy users of the health service, accounting for at least 70%
of all NHS spend.

Loneliness, in particular, has been identified as one of the greatest public health
challenges of our time:

e Loneliness is linked to a greater risk of inactivity, smoking and risk-taking
behaviour, increased risk of coronary heart disease and stroke, an increased
risk of depression, low self-esteem, reported sleep problems and increased
stress response and with cognitive decline and an increased risk of
Alzheimer’s

e There is evidence showing loneliness can be as damaging to health as
obesity or smoking

e There are around 200,000 older people reported not to have had a
conversation with a friend or relative in more than a month, and

e Up to a fifth of all UK adults feel lonely most or all of the time.

In light of this evidence, the UK government has recently appointed a Minister for
Loneliness and just launched the first Loneliness Strateqy, confirming that all GPs in

! Reproduced in Broader Determinants of Health: Future Trends, The King's Fund
report: https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/projects/time-think-differently/trends-broader-
determinants-health

?Low Commission (2015): The role of advice services in health outcomes: evidence
review and mapping study.

Page 4

Page 20


https://www.gov.uk/government/news/pm-launches-governments-first-loneliness-strategy
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/pm-launches-governments-first-loneliness-strategy
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/748212/6.4882_DCMS_Loneliness_Strategy_web.pdf
https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/projects/time-think-differently/trends-broader-determinants-health
https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/projects/time-think-differently/trends-broader-determinants-health

Healthier
’ Lancashire &
AW South Cumbria

England will be able to refer patients experiencing loneliness to community
activities and voluntary services by 2023.

Social prescribing is considered a means for healthcare practitioners to
address these non-medical causes of ill-health with non-medical interventions,
and has been described simply by Ceri Jones (Nesta, 2017°) as a “process for
healthcare professionals to connect people with non-medical community
interventions which enable them to become confident in managing their
conditions. These could be for arts and creative activities, social groups,
physical activity, education and learning new skills, self-help, volunteering and
befriending as well as support with welfare advice.” Social prescribing can
add social value and reduce health inequalities®.

These non-medical interventions are usually provided by the community, VCSE
(voluntary, charity and social enterprise) or VCFS (voluntary, charity and faith
sector), which may be commissioned by the local health and care ecosystem, grant
funded or independently resourced. These resources may have been developed
following identification of a community or systemic need:

a) using a top-down approach, led by the public sector,

b) following a collaborative co-production model, or

c) taking an asset-based community development approach, whereby the
residents and community members build on the assets they have to support
their community needs best.

Social prescribing doesn’t replace the opportunity for individuals to access
community resources independently, but offers support for those who require
signposting and assistance in identifying needs and accessing local resources.
While the term has been criticised for promoting a medical model, if the correct
systems are in place social prescribing can be seen as a mechanism to facilitate
signposting of people toward services that can help them live healthier lives -
promoting a salutogenic approach to health (with the emphasis on a positive state of
wellbeing, rather than a focus on iliness or disease). Further information on
salutogenesis and its relation to social prescribing can be found in Social prescribing
at a glance ~ A scoping report of activity for the North West (Health Education
England, 2016) section 2.2.2.

1.2 Commissioning and funding for social prescribing schemes

3 https://www.nesta.org.uk/blog/social-prescribing-and-innovate-to-save/
*Institute of Health Equality 2018 Report Reducing Health Inequalities Through New
Models of Care: A Resource for New Care Models

Page 5

Page 21


https://www.hee.nhs.uk/sites/default/files/documents/Social%20Prescribing%20at%20a%20glance.pdf
https://www.hee.nhs.uk/sites/default/files/documents/Social%20Prescribing%20at%20a%20glance.pdf
https://www.hee.nhs.uk/sites/default/files/documents/Social%20Prescribing%20at%20a%20glance.pdf
https://www.nesta.org.uk/blog/social-prescribing-and-innovate-to-save/
http://www.instituteofhealthequity.org/resources-reports/reducing-health-inequalities-through-new-models-of-care-a-resource-for-new-care-models/reducing-health-inequalities-through-new-models-of-care-a-resource-for-new-care-models.pdf
http://www.instituteofhealthequity.org/resources-reports/reducing-health-inequalities-through-new-models-of-care-a-resource-for-new-care-models/reducing-health-inequalities-through-new-models-of-care-a-resource-for-new-care-models.pdf

Healthier
’ Lancashire &
AW South Cumbria

NHS England estimates that 60% of Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) have
commissioned some form of social prescribing scheme®. Alongside this, a number of
voluntary sector organisations, such as the British Red Cross and its Connecting
Communities initiative supported by the private sector, run referral or connector
schemes to support public services.

The NHS Long Term Plan, published in January 2019, sets out a vision and actions
to be taken to ensure that people have more access to personalised care including
social prescribing. NHS England have shown commitment to supporting
developments by funding over 1,000 additional trained social prescribing link workers
across the country by the end of 2020/21, rising further by 2023/24, with the aim that
over 900,000 people are able to be referred to social prescribing schemes by then.

In July 2018, the Department of Health and Social Care announced that 23 social
prescribing projects in England would receive a share of £4.5 million to extend
existing schemes or establish new ones through its Health and Wellbeing Fund.

Through the £3.3 million Communities Fund, the Ministry of Housing, Communities
and Local Government has also funded partnerships to deliver social prescribing
interventions to help tackle loneliness amongst the elderly and young people.

A further Local Digital Fund - a “digital pledge” backed by £7.5 million of government
funding — was announced in July 2018 to help councils transform their digital
services in line with the Local Digital Declaration. This initiative is helping to change
the way councils invest in technology, share expertise and ensure members of the
public are receiving the best quality digital services and some of that funding,
available for the financial years 2018/19 to 2019/20, has been awarded to social
prescribing schemes.

1.3 Delivery models for social prescribing
The goal of social prescribing is to address people’s needs more holistically and
therefore more effectively, and social prescribing may reduce demand for health
services in a cost-effective way, by improving health and wellbeing measures, as well
as confidence in self-managing health conditions (see below for evidenced impact).

There are many models of delivery, whereby a person can access resources in their
community, and often these models exist side by side within a locality, as follows:

*> A connected society A strategy for tackling loneliness — laying the foundations for
change, Department for Digital, Culture, Media and Sport (October 2018). This
publication is available for download at
www.gov.uk/government/collections/governments-work-on-tackling-loneliness

Page 6

Page 22


https://www.redcross.org.uk/get-help/get-help-with-loneliness
https://www.redcross.org.uk/get-help/get-help-with-loneliness
https://www.longtermplan.nhs.uk/
https://localdigital.gov.uk/fund/
http://www.gov.uk/government/collections/governments-work-on-tackling-loneliness

Healthier
’ Lancashire &
AW South Cumbria

The person can be referred by a GP or other health care professional (HCP)
(or administrative staff in a clinical environment) direct to community / VCSE /
VCFS providers

The patient can be referred by a GP (or other HCP or administrator as above)
to a link worker / community connector / wellbeing worker / health advisor who
then performs a holistic assessment and signposts the patient to appropriate
community / VCFS services

Referrals can be generated from within other sectors, e.g. Citizen’s Advice
Bureau, non-health council services, religious or other community groups,
VCES internal referrals

A person may independently research and access via self-referral local
community / VCSF services independently, to meet their individual needs and
interests.

1.4 Impact of social prescribing

At the

recent King’s Fund Social Prescribing conference, Matt Hancock, current

Secretary for State, said the following in his address:

Social

“Music and the arts aren’t just the foods of love. They’re not just right in their
own terms as the search for truth and expression of the human condition.

We shouldn’t only value them for the role they play in bringing meaning and
dignity to our lives. We should value the arts and social activities because
they’re essential to our health and wellbeing.

And that’s not me as a former Culture Secretary saying it. It's scientifically
proven. Access to the arts and social activities improves people’s mental and

physical health. It makes us happier and healthier.”

prescribing has been subject to a surge of recent study and analysis, in an

attempt to demonstrate what seems apparent anecdotally, that the arts, nature and
social activities are essential to our wellbeing.

1.4.1 Cost effectiveness and impact on healthcare resource

Page 7

utilisation

Page 23


https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/the-power-of-the-arts-and-social-activities-to-improve-the-nations-health
https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/the-power-of-the-arts-and-social-activities-to-improve-the-nations-health

Healthier
’ Lancashire &
AW South Cumbria

A review of the literature by Polley et al (2017)° reports quite inconsistent but notable
service demand changes demonstrated following referral to social prescribing
interventions:
e Reduced demand on GP services by 2 to 70% (average 28%),
e Reduced attendance at Accident & Emergency (A&E) departments by 8 to
26.8% (average 24%)
e Reduced emergency hospital admissions by 6 to 33.6% in the “months
following referral”
e Statistically reduced secondary care referrals at 12 months (55%) and 19
months (64%) following referral
e One study however showed that the likelihood of referral to secondary care
mental health care more than doubled following referral.

The same review reported a Return on Investment (ROI) of only 0.11 to 0.43 or
indeed higher costs of care per patient in an intervention group than a control group,
and a mean Social Return on Investment (SROI) of £2.3 per £1 invested in the first
year. It was noted that in one study, reduced demand on health services only
applied to sub-groups of patients who completed the interventions, and in another
study, patients who failed to engage fully with social prescribing had much higher
rates of health service use both before and after referral.

This highlights the need to track people’s attendance as well as outcomes for a
given intervention, and may support use of an integrated Patient Activation
Measure (PAM) to identify patients who are more likely to engage fully by their
prior level of knowledge, skills and confidence; it may also help identify people
who may require further support for example through befriending services due
to lower levels of activation. Evidence has shown that patients who have
higher Patient Activation Measure scores utilise healthcare resources less. ’

The inconsistent results of the studies reported in the review above may reflect the
variability in the nature and quality of a local social prescribing offer and / or the
reporting mechanisms, and were attributed to a high drop-off rate in many
evaluations, with loss to follow-up biasing results as only those who completed
interventions gave feedback. Further, many studies seeking to determine the impact

® A review of the evidence assessing impact of social prescribing on healthcare
demand and cost implications Polley, M., Bertotti, M., Kimberlee, R., Pilkington, K.,
and Refsum, C. June 2017

"Barker I, Steventon A, Williamson R, et al Self-management capability in patients

with long-term conditions is associated with reduced healthcare utilisation across a
whole health economy: cross-sectional analysis of electronic health records. BMJ
Qual Saf Published Online First: 23 August 2018. doi: 10.1136/bmjgs-2017-007635

Page 8

Page 24


https://knowhownonprofit.org/funding/commissioning/reviewofevidenceassessingimpactofsocialprescribing.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/ourwork/patient-participation/self-care/patient-activation/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/ourwork/patient-participation/self-care/patient-activation/

Healthier
’ Lancashire &
AW South Cumbria

of a social prescribing scheme on demand compared rates of use before and after
referral, rather than between a control and intervention group.

This highlights the need to be able to cross-reference social prescribing
reported data with other patient healthcare data such as GP attendances and
secondary care referrals, in order to demonstrate the impact of social
prescribing schemes on healthcare resource utilisation. It suggests that
commissioning could be better targeted to yield a higher Return on Investment
with better, digitised, referral and reporting processes.

The review concludes “the evidence that social prescribing delivers cost savings to
the health service over and above operating costs is encouraging but by no means
proven or fully quantified.”

1.4.2 Clinical and wellbeing outcome measures

A review by Chatterjee et al (2018)® provides the most comprehensive summary to date of
the evidence regarding clinical and wellbeing improvements following referral to social
prescribing schemes.

These authors reviewed 40 research papers including pilot studies, of which comprised:
e 14 for exercise referral
e 9 for arts on prescription
e 3 for supported referral
e 2 for sign posting
e 1 for each of education on prescription, health living initiatives and time banks, and
e 9 for social prescribing in general containing a range of local offers.

Positive outcomes included:
e Increases in self-esteem and confidence, sense of control and empowerment
e Improvements in psychological or mental wellbeing, and positive mood
e Reduction in anxiety and / or depression, and negative mood
e Improvements in physical health and lifestyle
¢ Reduction in visits to general practitioners, referring health professionals and
primary or secondary care services

®Helen J. Chatterjee, Paul M. Camic, Bridget Lockyer & Linda J. M.

Thomson (2018) Non-clinical community interventions: a systematised review of
social prescribing schemes, Arts & Health, 10:2,97-

123, DOI: 10.1080/17533015.2017.1334002

Page 9

Page 25


https://doi.org/10.1080/17533015.2017.1334002

Healthier
’ Lancashire &
AW South Cumbria

e Provision to general practitioners of a range of options to complement medical care

for a more holistic approach
e Increases in sociability, communication skills and social connections
e Reduction in social isolation and loneliness, support for hard-to-reach people
e Improvements in motivation and meaning in life providing hope and optimism
e Acquisition of learning, new interests and skills.

This highlights the need to measure wellbeing or clinical impact of interventions in

order to demonstrate efficacy and improve commissioning processes.

2. Overview of the (Digital) Social Prescribing landscape
across Lancashire and South Cumbria

Across the region, we see various models in place for the commissioning,
development of, and signposting toward community resources. These include:
e grass roots (locally / independently funded) asset-based community
developments (ABCD),

e third sector collaborations,

e micro-commissioning facilitated by an intermediary such as a Council for
Voluntary Services (CVS).

Referral routes include self-referral and referral via an intermediary link worker /
wellbeing practitioner / care navigator (role titles vary across the region and
nationally). While Making Every Contact Count underpins many clinicians’ practice,
often time restraints mean that auxiliary staff are better placed to deliver the more
personalised aspect of care. Referrals are made by paper and in some locations
electronically, either by email or within a bespoke social prescribing system or the
GP EMIS patient record.

Here follows examples of different approaches across the region; these examples
are not meant to be exhaustive, as it is beyond the scope of this paper to report
every opportunity to access community resources across the region. Some of these
and other local examples are documented in Social prescribing at a glance ~ A
scoping report of activity for the North West (Health Education England, 2016) which
also highlights the importance of asset-based approaches to social prescribing
delivery.

Page 10

Page 26


http://www.makingeverycontactcount.co.uk/
https://www.hee.nhs.uk/sites/default/files/documents/Social%20Prescribing%20at%20a%20glance.pdf
https://www.hee.nhs.uk/sites/default/files/documents/Social%20Prescribing%20at%20a%20glance.pdf

Healthier
’ Lancashire &
AW South Cumbria

2.1 Morecambe Bay
Community activities to support the health and wellbeing of residents are quite well
established and developed across the Bay region. An example of this is the
Morecambe Community Collective where local residents have connected to drive
forward a social movement to address health and wellbeing, loneliness and social
isolation, education, employment, belonging and purpose. This has been grass roots
driven, supported by a local GP, and without any digital means of referral or impact
monitoring. In terms of CVS presence/support, Penrith CVS provide some support to
South Cumbria, but the VCFS network is mostly supported through Mind and AgeUK.

In (South and North) Cumbria and under development in Morecambe Bay, the fully
EPR-intergrated (primary, secondary care and local authority) system Strata Health
(see further detail below) has been deployed, the social prescribing element of which
is supported and maintained in collaboration with AgeUK. This Whole System Patient
Flow mechanism also facilitates referral from primary or secondary care to care
homes, public community services (e.g. physiotherapy), hospices and social care.

To date they have begun rolling out a number of social prescribing workflows as
follows:
e Slimming World
« Bereavement services — self-referral as well as clinical referral
« Positive Living Group
o Complementary Therapy services
e Community neighbours programme
e Age UK - Referrals and integration that includes 25 separate services
including the following -
« Welfare benefits
o Debt advice
e Sensory loss support
e Poverty crisis / support
e Home aids and adaptations.

2.2 Pennine Lancashire
Blackburn with Darwen have had care navigation in place through their Wellbeing
service, Re:fresh since 2014. The service has hub advisors, and offers face to face
appointments with health trainers, who are behaviour change specialists, offering
brief interventions as well as signposting to further services. The service receives
approximately 2000 referrals per year via a single point of access, and utilises the
DCRS - national data collection and recording system — which accompanies their

Page 11

Page 27


http://morecambecollective.co.uk/
http://stratahealth.co.uk/
https://www.refreshbwd.com/

” II:IeaIthierh_ %
ancashire
‘fi’ South Cumbria

health trainer IT package and incorporates the Warwick-Edinburgh Mental Wellbeing
Scale (WEMWABS) wellbeing assessment tool.

GPs make approximately 60 per cent of referrals via EMIS to a secure inbox.
Patients can also self-refer, and it is believed that a number of ‘self-referrals’ are
indirectly from GPs who have given a leaflet about the service to patients. Reporting
is available, but is felt not to be very systematic or convenient. The Re:fresh website
does contain a directory of services which hosts contact details for community
groups.

Delivery model for Re:fresh Wellbeing service, Blackburn with Darwen:

DELIVERY MODEL

- Marketing & Awareness /
GP /Primary & Secondary 3 Key Partner Referrals
Care Referals Gommlglélfy&enf%?;ermntf & Signposting

BLACKBURN WITH DARWEN WELLBEING SERVICE

Single point of access
Wellbeing Hub Advisors
Triage, Brief Intervention & Follow Up

Health Trainers: Universal Health
Face 2 Face Support & Wellbeing
Programmes
Targeted / Holistic Assessment
Condition-Specific & Goal Setting Physical Activity
ealth & Sport

Ongoing

re:fresh
(Healthy Lifestyles)

Continual awareness & support for the wider determinants of health throughout

- . Community
. Leaming & Volunteering
LU=tk Employment Opportunities Ggups,_S\_:ypr;]);ﬁ

East Lancashire CCG hosts a Prescription for Wellbeing Service in collaboration with
their local CVS organisations, who micro-commission services from third sector
providers. A summary of the activity for the Prescription for Wellbeing service for
2017-2018 is provided below, and the final 2017-18 report can be viewed here. Care
navigation can be directed from a GP or receptionist, via EMIS to community
connectors in the CVS (who all have a social work, health or third sector background)
who perform an holistic assessment centred around the question “what matters to
you?” and with outcome monitoring via the WEMWBS tool mentioned above.

Page 12

Page 28


https://warwick.ac.uk/fac/sci/med/research/platform/wemwbs/researchers/userguide/wemwbs_practice_based_user_guide.pdf
https://warwick.ac.uk/fac/sci/med/research/platform/wemwbs/researchers/userguide/wemwbs_practice_based_user_guide.pdf
https://www.refreshbwd.com/services/?ap=a
https://www.bprcvs.co.uk/images/linked-files/2017-2018-CCG-Report.pdf

” II:IeaIthierh_ %
ancashire
‘fi’ South Cumbria

Total activity in the East Lancashire Prescription for Wellbeing service 2017-2018:

Total grant fund = £252,303.33 Total approved = £241,490.08
Total applications = 107 Total successful = 71

1639 = (@) G135 wow”

Delivered to '

ﬂo Qgﬂ - e N3]

beneficiaries per beneficiary

e s
/| ),1 ’
6649 9
.3"4.,,05‘7,,/ 1 > e

Beneficiaries overall felt 4 times more optimistic

& 3 times more useful

There was an increase of 55%0 clearer thinking with
people feeling 3 times more relaxed

Problem solving skills increased by 3 with beneficiaries also
«Q (o) feeling 3 times more confident in making decisions
H People have been interacting socially tWiCe as often

On average there were 5 less visits by beneficiaries to GPs O
than in the preceding 3 months
People took part in 3 times more physical activity

Beneficiaries found their diets became 195 %0 healthier a-‘

The figures in this box represent the average impact on users” welibeing from across all 5 localities

Outcomes are mostly reported in the form of case studies, and the success of the
service is believed to be due to underlying “human desire to help others with
compassion” (Michelle Pilling, Deputy Chair of NHS East Lancashire CCG), and due
to the investment that has been provided to more than 600 groups, the strong
relationships between stakeholders, and the fact that local stakeholders have
prioritised investment based on the needs identified by the local communities and the
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment, where asset development has been led by the
communities themselves. East Lancashire CCG also commissions the award-
winning Green Dreams CIC project.

East Lancashire also has a third-sector held hyper-local directory of services in the
form of the REAL website, an information and service directory supporting
connecting communities, volunteering, and information to people living in the
Rossendale area as well as patient support in the area.

Page 13

Page 29


https://www.greendreamsproject.co.uk/
https://rossendale.realtd.co.uk/

Il:lealthierh_ %
ancashire
r’ South Cumbria

m E Enlarge website text AAA
Select Language V| [ search al iy

CONNECTING OUR COMMUNITY

Real Support for the
Rossendale Community

100's of services from in and around the Rossendale area

View full list of services

A request from East Lancashire regarding digital support for social prescribing is
around how we can better capture data, avoid onerous reporting mechanisms
by having a central point for data capture and build our relationships with
academic institutions, to better understand the impact of social prescribing
across the region. There are also some local concerns in the Pennine Lancashire
region that a digital solution might leave some third sector organisations behind — this
highlights a possible need to include digital upskilling and training to third
sector providers to facilitate rollout and uptake of any digital solutions
procured.

2.3 Central Lancashire

Lancashire Wellbeing Service is a key deliverer of social prescribing in Central
Lancashire, is funded by Lancashire County Council, and delivered by a consortium
of three established charities: Age Concern Central Lancashire, Richmond
Fellowship & n-compass. The website hosts a directory of services, and an online
referral form, and reports a social return on investment of £7 for every £1 spent (see
Appendix A for full report).

The Lancashire Wellbeing Service offer:

Page 14

Page 30


https://www.lancashirewellbeing.co.uk/

Healthier
’ Lancashire &

:.i South Cumbria

WE OFFER SUPPORT TO ADULTS
(18+) WHO ARE ELIGIBLE IN ONE

i - o 4 o D A !
| U |
- S [ - I I " n
L ) o -~ d L A '
| B - _ 4
o g BHE ~ <1 E_ | [
| P IA' 3 &0 P IS B
" n ") [ 31
- T ol - G
* - AL “ * 1 h
. RN N i
® EMOTIONAL HEALTH m STRUGGLING TO COPE
® SOCIAL ISOLATION m LIFESTYLE AND HEALTHY
m DIFFICULT CIRCUMSTANCES LIVING

® LONG TERM HEALTH CONDITIONS

lgle OFFER OF UP TO 8 SESSIONS OVER A
E 3 MONTH PERIOD, WITH AN AIM TO:
= REDUCE DEPENDENCY
= CREATE POSITIVE BEHAVIOURAL CHANGE

® ENABLEMENT/SELF CARE
= PROVIDE ALTERNATIVES TO MEDICAL AND CLINICAL CARE

Further social prescribing is offered via the Building Recovery in Communities fund,
managed by Red Rose Recovery, which supports open cinema, arts workshops, and
referral on to physical activitiy, singing groups, etc. CVS organisations across
Central Lancashire have closed over the past few years, and so VCFS organisations
support each other with more local network arrangements; e.g. Chorley has a strong
VCFS network. The VCFS network does hold a seat on the Central Lancashire ICP
board.

2.4 West Lancashire
West Lancashire CCG has been host to a Well North Pathfinder for some years now
and is currently piloting the Elemental platform (commenced July 2018, further
details of platform below) for digital social prescribing in the Skelmersdale region, as
follows, with a view to rolling out more widely in the future:

“‘West Lancs GP Federation are working in partnership with West Lancs CVS to
deliver a Social Prescribing pilot in the Skelmersdale locality. The life expectancy in
Skelmersdale is lower than in other parts of West Lancashire and the difference is
patterned by deprivation, lifestyles and other social and economic influences. By
addressing social issues through a holistic approach to health and wellbeing we are

Page 15

Page 31


http://www.redroserecovery.org.uk/bric-funding/
http://www.wellnorth.co.uk/pathfinders/well-skelmersdale/welcome-to-well-skelmersdale
https://elementalsoftware.co/

” IF_Iecﬂthierh_ %
ancashire
:.i’ South Cumbria

hoping that we will prevent individuals from developing long term conditions and
ultimately increase their life expectancy and quality of life.

Elemental will bring this vision together and allow for collaborative working between
primary care and community and voluntary sectors. The ability to measure the impact
that these community services have on patients will be instrumental in designing new
models of care. The use of Elemental will empower patients to take responsibility for
their own health and wellbeing resulting in improved access to a GP for those that
really need them. Time with patients is limited in a GP practice, therefore processes
need to be quick and easy, Elemental is both of those things which really impacts on
the buy-in we need from the primary care workforce in order adopt this approach”
(Alex Rowlands, Operations Manager, West Lancashire GP Federation - OWLS CIC
Ltd.).

2.5 Fylde Coast
Across the Fylde Coast, NHS organisations and councils have collaborated to create
a public-facing directory of local community services. The EYI Directory is a new
information resource that can be accessed by the public and health and care
professionals across Blackpool, Fylde and Wyre, bringing together information about
a wide range of local health and council services, community clubs, social groups,
wellbeing activities and events into one comprehensive source. It also includes
Blackpool's Local Offer for Children and Young People with Special Education Needs
or Disabilities. The FYI Directory was accessed by 117,035 users over 161,556
sessions from its launch in September 2017 to June 2018.

FYI Directory Homepage, to be found at https://www.fyidirectory.co.uk/ :

N

Diirict«  WhACYON  ComtactUs  Welp  AZof serviees WA e g i Arwa

Your one stop shop for health, social, community and childcare
services information on the Fylde coast.

T T

Page 16

Page 32


https://www.fyidirectory.co.uk/kb5/blackpool/directory/home.page
https://www.fyidirectory.co.uk/

” Il:lealthierh_ %
ancashire
:.i.' South Cumbria

In the Wyre region, Healthier Fleetwood (HF) is an example of another grass-roots
community movement which has actively engaged and empowered community
members taking a proactive asset-based approach. Established in Spring 2016 as a
partnership of residents, healthcare professionals, local authorities and services,
businesses, voluntary and faith groups to improve the health and wellbeing of those
living and working in the town, from approximately Spring 2017 social prescribing
was available on a self-referral basis through the HF website to activities including
gardening, walking sports, beach cleans, swimming, singing, dancing and much
more.

Healthier Fleetwood homepage, accessed at https://www.healthierfleetwood.co.uk/ :

Helping to make Fleetwood a
healthier place for residents
now and in the future

The service now employs two wellbeing workers who receive direct paper referrals
from GPs and follow this up with a phone call or email to patients for a conversation
about their needs and signposting to appropriate community activities. Outcomes
are good in terms of quality of life improvement, but are anecdotal to date as the
group are looking to embed WEMWABS or a similar outcome measure in their impact
monitoring. A report on the activity and impact of Healthier Fleetwood can be found
in Appendix A, and HF are keen to engage in conversations about a more robust
digital referral and impact monitoring solution.

As part of the Enhanced Primary Care Fylde Coast vanquard site developments,
neighbourhood based wellbeing support workers are now signposting patients and
their carers in Blackpool to appropriate voluntary sector services including carer
support, whilst also offering direct provision of health coaching and PAM
measurement. A further pilot project run by Social Enterprise Solutions, a Blackpool
third sector organisation, is offering social prescribing to the patients of two GP
practices with anecdotal improvement in health outcomes. Blackpool CVS has

Page 17

Page 33


https://www.healthierfleetwood.co.uk/
https://www.healthierfleetwood.co.uk/
http://www.blackpoolccg.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/5/2016/02/Item-11-EPC-Model-Blackpool.pdf
http://www.socialenterprisesolutions.co.uk/

” Il:lealthierh_ %
ancashire
5’ South Cumbria

folded but Wyre and Fylde CVS provide some ongoing support to Blackpool VCFS
organisations.

Page 18

Page 34



Healthier
’ Lancashire &
AW South Cumbria

3. Digital support for social prescribing

3.1 Defining standards
Explicit standards for social prescribing or IT system functionality to support social
prescribing do not exist at present; however we may extrapolate standards from
existing personalised care standards and data standards provided by NHS England,
NHS Digital and the Local Government Authority (LGA), and can also consider
embedding quality standards within commissioning processes for providers.

3.1.1 IT requirements for personalised care
NHS England has outlined the IT requirements for personalised care, expecting all IT
solutions to integrate with the NHS.uk platform, which will be the common platform
for public access to NHS IT services. Solutions should take into account NHS Digital
standards (the three products appraised below are measured against the standards
in Appendix B), some of which are highlighted below.

Core IT requirements for personalised care, from IT requirements for personalised

care, NHS England 2017:

An IT solution must have been designed with people at the heart, such as
through agile development methodology

An IT solution must enable genuine choice and control for people and their
families to achieve the desired outcomes from the personalisation agenda, in
line with the IPC key shifts and consistent with the statutory regulations. It
should allow for flexibility and innovation in people’s lives

An IT solution must meet the relevant data security and privacy standards, in
line with NHS policy, and must be consistent with the IT security requirements
of the Information Governance (IG) toolkit

An IT solution must allow appropriate access, taking into account different
user needs and including the capability to verify identity

An IT solution must enable connectivity and interoperability to support
integration between health, social care and education in a local area

An IT solution must allow for the analysis and reporting of data, to understand
whether and how the outcomes from personalisation are being delivered

The individual’s information must be portable between different IT solutions to
facilitate ease of movement

An IT solution must be capable of providing management information and user
feedback that will enable development and improvement, to ensure it is
successfully supporting the policy outcomes

The solution must provide appropriate availability to meet people’s needs,
through appropriate access channels, and support assistive technology

Page 19

Page 35


https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/02/it-requirements-personalised-care-feb17.pdf
https://www.nhs.uk/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/02/it-requirements-personalised-care-feb17.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/02/it-requirements-personalised-care-feb17.pdf

Healthier
’ Lancashire &
AW South Cumbria

e |T solutions must provide accurate record keeping for all users

Community IT requirements for personalised care, from IT requirements for
personalised care, NHS England 2017:

e [Community]: this functionality, if available, should support health
empowerment and service improvements, including access to peer support.

e [Individual] “I can access peer support through a safe, online forum. This helps
me make choices about my care and support’

e [Individual] “I can rate and comment on services; this feedback supports my
care and support review and enables the system to identify common issues
and / or successes”

¢ [Individual] “l am able to link my other health apps / health data to the IT
solutions so that | can better self-manage my health condition”

e [Professionals] “The IT solution helps me to understand better what services
people are choosing and benefiting people in my local area so that | can
improve the way | commission services and investigate where there appear to
be problems.

3.1.2 Local Government Association Data Standards

The Local Government Association (LGA) has defined standards that can support
the nomenclature of service descriptions and needs assessments when creating
directories of services. These have been developed into LGA Locally Delivered
Services Schema Guidance (see Appendix A for full details) and these data
standards ideally should underpin any platform Healthier Lancashire & South
Cumbria or any of our partner organisations decide to procure. Opportunities
are currently under discussion to host an LGA pilot site within Lancashire and
South Cumbria. The LGA hope to run four national pilots in the next few
months to work with local government “places,” health, voluntary and private
sector to collect and publish data about local services in a standard capable of
being consumed by apps for use in social prescribing.

A pilot site project would involve the creation and maintenance of a single,
place-based directory of services which would collect hyper-local service
information once and make it available to many, allowing any platform/app
procured across health and care, Citizens’ Advice Bureau or other
organisations (e.g. Our Lancashire, see below) to consume such single-source

Page 20

Page 36


https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/02/it-requirements-personalised-care-feb17.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/02/it-requirements-personalised-care-feb17.pdf
https://standards.esd.org.uk/?

Healthier
’ Lancashire &
AW South Cumbria

service data and make it available to the public and professionals on a variety
of platforms, where overlap might exist.

The diagram below provides an overview of this model, which is further expanded
upon in Appendix A, in the documents ‘Place-based Directory of Services pilot
project proposal based on LGA Data Standards’ and ‘LGA proposal to cabinet office
for local services data collection to address loneliness.’

?
~
$

Service User
Citizen, Carer, Professional

Citizens, carers and frontline workers can choose which
application they want to use

i i H H i

aia aila s aia [
Service Data Service Data Service Data Service Data Service Data
Consumer Consumer Consumer Consumer Consumer
ELEMENTAL STRATA POLICE SUPPORT WORDPRESS COUNCIL A-Z

Data is made available to many frontline application that wants
hyper local support service place data

-

i o

Bulk SEI’\{ICE data Place Administrator
provider
Governs the
configuration of the

place i.e. assurance

Contributes a larger
list of services

collected by another Data is collected, tagged and assured ONCe on behalf definition, meta tags
means of the place
- -~ N )
7'y . T al's
Volunteer data Data assurance partner Service Provider Assurer

collector

3.1.3 Quality standards for service providers

When commissioning services from third sector organisations, commissioners may
wish to consider embedding quality standards into the commissioning process.
Examples of these might include the NCVO Quality Standards, which although not
specific to health “offer organisations, both in and outside the voluntary sector, an
externally-verified seal of approval, which publicly demonstrates your organisation’s
commitment to quality assurance and continuous improvement.”

Another quality framework and certification process is offered by the Quality
Improvement for Self-Management Education and Training who are “an independent
not-for-profit body that supports self-management providers and commissioners to

Page 21

Page 37


https://www.ncvo.org.uk/practical-support/quality-and-standards
http://www.qismet.org.uk/
http://www.qismet.org.uk/

Healthier
’ Lancashire &
AW South Cumbria

achieve the highest possible quality service for people living with long-term health
conditions” ... “by developing Quality Standards defining good practice and
certificating providers against these Standards.”

However, it must be considered that rigidly applying a quality standard may exclude
small third sector providers who are offering very meaningful support to individuals to
manage their health and wellbeing.

3.2 Local digital requirements to support social prescribing, identified
by stakeholder engagement

Consultation and engagement with a range of stakeholders — including
commissioners, referrers, link workers, service providers and users - across
Lancashire and South Cumbria during September-October 2018 identified some core
requirements central to any digital offer, all of which are compared across platforms
in Appendix B:

e Integration with clinical (EMIS in primary care and other EPR systems utilised
in secondary care) and other systems (e.g. those used by council services) to
ensure referral process is simple and quick, without requiring duplication of
demographics, etc.

e Integrated Patient Activation Measure to help identify pre-referral activation
levels and possibly assist needs assessment

e Reporting of (at a minimum):

o Referral numbers, reason for referral

o Attendances

o Final outcome (qualitative and / or use of PROMs / PREMs ~
WEMWSBS is of particular interest as a standardised measurement of
wellbeing, and may permit outcome comparison between services)

e Correlation/cross-referencing of:

o Referrals and outcomes with GP attendance data

o Author’s note: correlation of referrals and outcomes with medication
usage and attendance at other services, e.g. mental health/emergency
department, may also prove valuable in terms of demonstrating impact

o Comparison of pre- and post-intervention PAM and outcome data
Author’s note: correlation of attendances and PAM score may prove
valuable in identifying those who require enhanced support, e.g.
befriending services to support initial attendance at groups for those
who are particularly socially isolated and/or have social anxiety.

Page 22

Page 38



” Il:lealthierh_ %
ancashire
5’ South Cumbria

The Digital Maturity Index for Social Prescribing is a useful resource created by
Elemental Software - one of the software providers discussed below - and might be a
useful self-assessment starting point for the Integrated Care Partnership localities
within Lancashire and South Cumbria to determine their current status and future
digital social prescribing requirements. It is recommended that all our ICP
organisations undertake this assessment in order to establish the digital maturity of
their current social prescribing offer, and their ambitions for service enhancement.

Digital Maturity Index for Social Prescribing

Level 5: Advanced
Social Prescribing

Level 2: Some Digital Services
coordination, early stage

SP programme, local lists NK
on Excel/Word, largely Level 4:
paper, some leaflets Social Prescribing
Software
Platform, some
integration

Level 1: Unco-ordinated

people know’, no SP / B \:

programme in area. Level 3: Level 5: Full analytics,

access for end users,

St‘a nd alone widespread integration,
Directory of a number of SP
Services programmes, digital
N / options; Citizen centred,
Level 4: Dedicated SP direct access.
N platform, SP programme
Level 2: engaged with many
Organised, largely Slakeolders saime
aper, local integration with other
P .P S systems (e.g.: GP)
( A directories Level 3: SP programme
\ P .
Level 1: established, local
directory of services,
Ad-hoc, paper perhaps on website, no
based integration of

1 2 information

3.3 Digital social prescribing platforms currently/imminently
deployed

Three main platforms for digital social prescribing are currently in use or under
development by Lancashire and South Cumbria health and care providers (Elemental and
Strata) and the Citizens’ Advice Bureau (Refernet), and are summarised below with links to
documents containing full details of the respective functionality of the former two in
Appendix A.

A table comparing core features of the products, comparing functionality against
the standards outlined in 3.1.1 above, and comparing indicative costs can be found
in Appendix B. Due to the commercial sensitivity of costing information, this appendix will
be shared on a limited basis.

Further platforms/directories in use or development outside of health and care in
Lancashire and South Cumbria, or in use or development elsewhere in the country, are

outlined briefly, as a detailed evaluation of every product on offer is outside of the scope of

Page 23

Page 39


https://elementalsoftware.co/digital-maturity-index/

Healthier
’ Lancashire &
AW South Cumbria

this paper. Some conclusions can be drawn from the detail below, but given the
breadth of the landscape (both locally and digitally), it is recommended that should
the scope be insufficient, a full options appraisal is commissioned.

3.3.1 Elemental

3.3.1.1 Overview

Elemental Software is a Tech For Good company with the purpose of engaging and
empowering communities towards better health outcomes. Co-founded by former
community development workers, and developed with input from service users and
providers, Elemental's bespoke social prescribing platform connects, supports,
measures and evaluates the uptake and impact of social prescribing referrals.

A full features document, platform overview and self-referral portal overview can be
found in Appendix A, under separate cover. The Elemental proposal for Lancashire
and South Cumbria can be found embedded in Appendix B, with limited access.

3.3.1.2 Clinical / social utility

The Elemental platform is easy to use, responsive and enables community referrals
to be implemented, measured and delivered across numerous health and social care
scenarios. The Elemental platform can be used by multiple health and wellbeing
professionals as well as commissioners and providers of community based
interventions such as smoking cessation, employability skills, mental health support
and physical activity interventions. The platform facilitates tracking of attendance by
service providers as the facilitators will be provided with a list of attendees, and to
run attendance reports on their own interventions.

Elemental Service Provider view:

Scheduled Recent 1show Porential Meesings My Calendar

Title Date Status Facilitators Venue Attendees < > roday May 2018 m week | day
B Resource ceror | Mon-00:00 | [EEEEEY | Jim Mclaughin - Faciltator Maurean Sheehan Cent .. # Confirmed
14 May 2012 ) Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat
1 2 3 4 54
B Meos shed | Wr\jmrwg:;ng EEEE] | i vclughiin- Facilitator Gasyard Community Ce . # contimea on tesoure | 4tp swar | 135 unche | 11a Deea | 10a New |
B
’ o |
B Minctuines: | Mon - 11:00 Jim McLaughlin - Facilitator ‘Gasyard Communicy Ce ... # Confirmed m
14 May 2018 @
B Luncheon cu | Mon-12:00 | [EEEEEED | Jim Melaughin - Faciiator Maureen Sheehan Cent .. & Confirmed [3 7 2 9 10 1 12
o e ) O
T Tue-t631 | [EEED  [fmvelsugtie: fociimor] | Lebureconie Prr— [ 10m ot 125 Lurch
15 May 2018 10) m
:
B Lunchoon cht | Wed - 12:00 Jim McLaughlin - Facilitator Maureen Sheehan Cent ... # Confirmed
16 May 2012 10} 13 14 15 16 17 18 12
x| iy | ot | ta e | omtion |
> e Wed-19:00  [EEEEEN | Jim Mclaughin - Faciltator Gasyard Community Ce.. # Confirmed
16 May 2018 (0} m 2p Fanche
B e Mermory Grou | Thu-11:00 | [N | fim McLsughlin. Feciltator Leisure Centre # Confirmed (]
12p Lunche
17 May 2018 Mary Duddy ()
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
B ncwLite Counceling | Fri-10.00 Tim McLauzhlin - Facilicatar ‘Gasyard Communicy Ce ... # Confirmed

Page 40



Eealthierh_ %
ancasnire
L 3

5 South Cumbria

3.3.1.3 Data reporting

The platform contains a suite of measuring tools used to capture data and track
measurements for individuals. The data entered into these tools populate
dashboards and reports to monitor progress and track impact. The system is
updated with new tools regularly and can be added to as part of the implementation
process to suit the needs of your project.

Elemental activity report (part 1):

@ Help
«Go Back ®  Activity Reports
1st Dec 2017 st Dec 2018
Nov =3
FILTERS Ditems selected Referrals
Unique Referrals : 364
Referred From
Housing Hub 10
5
12
est 15
10
5
5
103
102
o 102
Lo ity Hub 5
Local Housing Hub 5
o: 8
Referred From Region 8
0. Der 32
0. Ty 301
ot
@Help

Referred From Region

Co. Dern

5

@ @ &
8

Reasons For Referral

Managing my Home

o
Local Authority Hub
Local Housing Hub

Community Hub
Outreach Hub

Reasons for Referral

Data captured within Elemental can be used to provide impact reporting and will aid in the
evaluation of services. Further developments within the platform will combine the social
economic value of outcomes within the reporting module.

Page 25

Page 41



Eealthierh_ %
ancasnire
L 3

:.i South Cumbria

Elemental activity report (part 2):

B - - @Help
Work Training Reasons for Referra

Managing my Home 8
Cleanline: 1

50

b | a8 g -2
#

FILTERS 0 items selecte Interventions (prescriptions)

Primary Domains
O Clinical Support

Total Prescriptions : 410

217

3
3

14%

-nnnugﬁﬂal a
g‘.
7

LI - I - - - - - - -

3.3.1.4 Technical / Integration

Elemental are an EMIS Accredited Partner and an approved supplier on the G-
Cloud 10 framework. Elemental can work with existing directories of services
(DoS) or create an enhanced directory of services which can be populated in a
number of ways:

e Option 1 - Integrate via the Elemental API to existing DoS in the area

e Option 2 - Provide login details to the select list of providers

e Option 3 - A static list is created by the social prescribing link workers

e Option 4 - A combination of the above 3 options

Page 26

Page 42



Results Filters

Domains

Title

»Tea N Chat Social Evening

Capacity Cost

Has Cost

Example Elemental Directory of Services:

Distance Actions

46.99 m

Healthier
’ Lancashire &
AW South Cumbria

search...

+ Add to case

g zlr\‘zusc?lsi?p:lrste = »Laughter Yoga 12 = 4690m | +Addiocase TN T A sinerans
O Mental Health 14
O Diet £ Nutrition s > Couch to 5k Fre 46.99M | +Addtocase Pai [ - |
. AN
O social Support s Miford s :
» Confidence & Self Esteemn Fre 45.09m | +Addtocase \ \ -
Building S,
\ = 2C Vi o
Class Type A = ¢ £
yP » Mood Matters 15 Fre 46.98m + Add to case g Jamekon / o et
O walking Club 1 = | 3 p { S
| - oy Ainport
O Yoga 1 N / i 8 ,’ ’ i ~
D ek : » Mindfulness Hascosm | 46.98m | +Adotocase A 5 Londbdarmy/ | .
O Circuit Class 2 h = ~Derry. //‘ - /
D Life Coaching 1 »Walking Club 20 Fres 46.99 m + Add to case f
D Spin Class 1 ) )
O weight Management Cl- 1 » Beginners Yoga 25 Fre 46.99m | +Addtocase { f
—
—
»Shape Your Health Fre 46.99m | +Addtocase ~ ",\
Formats <o 7/ "
O Programme 26 »Weigh to go! 20 Hascost | 46.98mM | +Addtocase
O Event 1 J .
> circuit class Fre 260km | +Addtocase
Levels »spin class Fre. 3.60 km + Add to case
O suitable for Beginners 25 = Sperrins
O Intermediate : 1 2 Lookt s 3.69 km +Add to case | P

AONB—

O Expert 1

Extracts of data from Elemental can be provided or a direct link via an API to connect to
other Bl / Analytic software that may be in use in order to collate data from other sources.
Elemental are researching correlating different data sets such as A&E attendances with
the social prescribing data captured within the platform to be used at a local level.

3.3.2 Strata

3.3.2.1 Overview

Delivered through a fully integrated cloud-based platform, Strata Pathways™ is a
whole health and social care flow system that includes, but is not limited to, social
prescribing to services delivered by charities, social enterprises, private sector and
health and wellbeing programmes etc. Strata optimise the transition of patients to
the most appropriate setting of care across the health and care system.

A full paper outlining Strata functionality can be found embedded in Appendix A,
under separate cover.

Page 27

Page 43



Healthier
Lancashire &

Strata flow overview:

. . T ‘
Real-time, coordinated flow across your (ZStrat
healthcare network Fealth

Single points of access
: . Patient Dir Acut Emergen . mmuni
Social Services atient Direct . cute e.ge Y Primary Care Mental Health Co .u ty
Ambulance Discharge Triage Services
A AN AN /1\ Z Z Z
Patient Care s Live Service
Profile (¥ ] strata Catalogue
@ |
¢ Real-time notifications & alerts ¢ Advanced resource matching &
* e-Referral * Process Automation
! -
batientiNeec * Live bed status e Advanced analysis EroviceriResource
]
Rag status: Match capacity
with demand
-~ Y
Hospital Recovery Home Services Residential Mental Health & Other
« Direct Access « Allied Health « Skilled Nursing * Nursing Home Addictions Social Prescribing
* Specialist services * Outpatient * Home Support * Residential Home * C_risislnterven- Safeguarding
* Ambulatory Care * Step down * Wrap around * Assisted Living tion / Outreach Financial
* Hospital at Home * Hospice * Case Manage- Community Projects
ment & Rehab .
Youth Supports Charities
Private Sector
3.3.2.2 Clinical / social utility

Strata matches patient needs, including clinical information, geographical preference,
and financial capabilities to the best available resources from a live directory of
services. For frontline staff, it means that they can see real-time availability of the
services and with the bi-directional transfer of care; all stakeholders are continually
updated on progress of the patient and adherence to the pathway.

Social prescribing referrals are treated exactly as a clinical referral would be and are
encompassed into other care types, where a referrer can complete a single referral
form (several pages) that can be matched to all available and appropriate services
and then sent to multiple endpoints (providers) within the Strata directory of services.

Through the use of PathWays™, patients can be directed to the most appropriate
care settings; the solution would match a list of relevant places or packages of care
based on the patient’s specific criteria, and then flag the results based on availability.
The referral can be sent digitally from the GP EMIS system. In Cumbria the
matching has also been linked to a GP clinical decision-making tool to show
available services matched to NICE guidelines for the presenting condition.

Page 28

Page 44



Healthier

Lancashire &
:.i’ South Cumbria

Strata third-sector referral options:

Welcome, William . Viewing client: Mrs Primis (qwer), Caroline (asdf)
Acting as: SEDBERGH MEDICAL PRACTICE § DOB: 01-01-1990
NHS Number: No identifier

Assessment > Dashboard > 3rd Sector Details Go Back elf Dashboard Home Swi

D Client Details | & Demographics | D consent | @ P petails || @ 16 Referral Information || & 3rd sector D-t.al\:w € Uploaded Files (0) | D Send and Manage Referrals ‘

! Long Term Health Conditions
Details

! Power Of Attorney

No Yes

! 3rd Sector Reason For Referral

Welfare benefits Debt advice Utillity issues
POA/Advance descisions Social engagement Physical engagement
Educational engagement Living with LTCs Mental health support
Sensory loss support Res/Nursing home support Carer support

Memory loss support Cancer support Hospital to home support
Practicalidomestic support Home aids and adaptations Home care support
Substance abuse support Bereavement Transport

Disability/Blue Badge Housing Prablems Poverty/crisis support

Other - see notes

Once the referral is sent and accepted, the GP will receive notification that the
referral has been acted upon and even that the patient has been adhering to the
services prescribed, all within their GP system. This will allow effectiveness to be
tracked using the data behind the Pathways system to manage outcomes from the
social prescribing services.

3.3.2.3 Data reporting

A full suite of reports and dashboards are also available through Strata IQ™ in order
to provide a full view of solution performance and to help direct clients towards good
decision making based on real-time evidence. As an example, the diagram below
demonstrates how referrals are delivered from primary care with a CCG.

3.3.2.4 Technical / Integration

PathWays™ can integrate and communicate with existing health and social care
applications through its integration engine, Strata Connect™ and has in-built
communication tools for messaging and alerting.

Page 29

Page 45



Healthier
’ Lancashire &
AW South Cumbria

Strata integration overview:

(& 2018 Strata Health Solutions Inc., all rights reserved. Commereially sensitive

CDA

-
ABE,
AatCentre [° - wi ,,w Hospital,
. . |- Special
em|5W ér _J_ o 1Q - Intormatics & reporting ::Strata I',' Tm;y
ll'—|

2
* Community
) Programs

v

]
/
/

\J

Service
Catalogue

Care type.
Watching

=5 =_apyfRoml ol LA/ Housing

== Seni) = Saclal care
Mental

Gyamic 65

= o LW

<l  Anactons

E

-

.l % - Volunteer

—_—— _ trata > 4}\/ 3rd Sector

PathWays, ~ N

FRED Whale
GPCPD

=
-
/!
=3

As well as bringing improvement to managing the flow of service users / patients,
integration across NHS and Local Authority IT systems will improve process,
collaboration and information flow. By then adding service integration with the external
health and social care providers, the entire health and care system would see
significant service benefits in transitioning patients to the most appropriate service.
Throughout the process activity data allows measurement of improvements against set
targets and metrics.

3.3.3 Refernet

3.3.3.1 Overview

Across all of Lancashire, the Citizens’ Advice Bureau (CAB) have developed and are
working toward full deployment of Refernet later this year, and are keen to engage
partners from health and care. Refernet is a secure, online referral management
system developed to provide secure communication between partners, offering
external agencies and organisations a fool-proofed method of referring their clients
for help.

Following almost ten years of development and after successful testing in other
geographical areas, CAB have secured the licence for the whole of Lancashire and
see this as a pan Lancashire project, with initial rollout due imminently in Chorley. In

Page 30

Page 46


https://www.refernet.co.uk/

” IF_Iecﬂthierh_ %
ancashire
5’ South Cumbria

the lead up to that initial launch, Chorley Borough Council / Lancashire Care
Foundation Trust Integrated Wellbeing Team are currently testing the system.

Full details of the Refernet platform can be found on the product website.

3.3.3.2 Clinical / social utility

Refernet is designed to complement existing case management tools or it could act
as a simple case management system in its own right. It can be accessed by
Citizens Advice, legal services, GP surgeries, housing trusts, mental health services,
debt advice agencies, parole services and education services.

Referrals are made in-system (not within EPR; during an initial referral,
demographics must be populated but are pre-filled for future referrals for the
same individual) and received by the third sector organisation or care navigator in-
system with an email alert. The patient interface is by text message only, and self-
referral is not currently an option but may be developed at a later date.

Refernet in-system referrer view:
(o} net - - - - @

Your system status

Open referrals Accepted referrals Closed referrals
This is the total number of referrals that have not yet This is the total number of currently accepted referralsin  This is the total number of referrals that have been closed
been accepted in your network your network. in your network

7 | 4

® View all @ View all @ View all
You have 3 referral updates

What is a referral update? A referral that has your Agency ID associated with it, this can include both sent referrals and recieved referrals.

4 Updated on Author / Recipient Status Progress
4076 12/06/2017 9 Susan Spencer (Shelter (Brighton)) # (Mind (Brighton)) ¥ Outcome assigned [ | ® View
4081 15/06/2017 a Mark Manson (Mind (Brighton)) # (St. Barnabas) Open [ ® View

4082  16/06/2017 @ Mary Manson (Mind (Brighton)) # (Shelter (Brighton)) Open (. @ View

You have 2 open referrals

What is an open referral? A referral that has your Agency ID associated with it, that has not been accepted, declined or withdrawn. This can include both sent referrals and
recieved referrals.

# Opened on Author / Recipient Progress

4081 15/08/2017 Mind (Brighton) # St. Barnabas [ | ® View

4082 16/06/2017 Mind (Brighton) # Shelter (Brighton) AN ® View

The overall goal of Refernet is one referral system that brings together all Statutory
Bodies, Local Authorities, Health Agencies and the Third Sector in one place

Page 31

Page 47



https://www.refernet.co.uk/

Healthier
’ Lancashire &
AW South Cumbria

together with some carefully selected commercial organisations. It is completely
customisable and is a bespoke system that can be adjusted in every way to tailor it to
the needs of the partners.

Refernet provides network of partners with:

An easy to use, simple and intuitive system

Bespoke branding and identity

Password protected accessibility for different user levels

Network and individual agency reports available to system administrators
Data security and password protected accessibility

Wide application for national, regional and sub-regional partnerships

No limit to the number of organisations or users

Full search facility and filtering by category and level of service, geographical
locations and more

Enhanced service profiles

Secure document transfer.

3.3.3.3 Datareporting

Refernet provides a trackable and auditable client journey with recorded outcomes:

Client data summary

O Filter

Marital Status

Widowed: 14 % \\ / Divorced: 14 %

A/ Married /cohabiting/civil partnership: 14 %

Single: 57 %

Marital Status Qty
Divorced 1
Married/cohabiting/civil partnership 1
Single 4
Widowed 1

Number of Children

2:20%

Page 32

Page 48



Healthier
’ Lancashire &
AW South Cumbria

3.3.3.4 Technical / Integration

Refernet does not currently offer integration with clinical or council EPR/PAS
systems, and is only available as a stand-alone cloud-based system.

3.4 Other platforms/models outside the scope of detailed
discussion in this paper

3.4.1 IEG4

IEG4's software solutions promote digital engagement between citizens and Local
Government and Health Service providers. Together with the LGA and iStandUK,
IEG4 worked toward the development of the LGA Data Standards discussed above
and further in documents embedded in Appendix A. Due to commercial restrictions
and the lack of alignment of public and commercial needs, pilot projects that were
due to be completed in Blackburn with Darwen, West Lancashire and Central
Lancashire never came to fruition.

The IEG4 platform has therefore not been explored in further depth. However,
further details of their place-based solutions for social prescribing can be found on
their website.

3.4.2 Our Lancashire
Lancashire Volunteer Partnership (LVP) are a well-established county-wide volunteer
matching agency with the vision that “Lancashire Public Services have an
integrated, efficient, effective and high quality Public Service Volunteer offer that
matches resource with need, supports vulnerable people to get the help they need to
become stronger and more resilient whilst reducing the demand on statutory
services.” A multi-agency strategy works toward integrated leadership and
commissioning, integrated teams and workforce development, integrated data
sharing and ICT systems, and the programme has delivered a social return on
investment of £9.97. The impact of LVP in 2017/18 can be seen in the diagram
below.

Page 33

Page 49


http://placebased.care/
http://placebased.care/
https://lancsvp.org.uk/
https://lancsvp.org.uk/

Healthier
Lancashire &

:.i’ South Cumbria

LVP by Numbers 2017/2018

4 212 LVP volunteers
Prr=— gy . e DRSSP T Y o

£8,383,440 of Social Value
LI T AT EEE Ay Ay A A A

711,156 hours volunteered by LVP volunteers
LI TR AT S Ay A

For every £1 invested in LVP a social return of £9.97 is returned

£840,895 cost of LVP
AR [ e Ay AR DT

Next steps for LVP are to expand their work to “Our Lancashire,” a new social action
network for Lancashire hosting a new online platform/directory which would facilitate:
e A space where social action groups can register and advertise their work and
interest category
o Linked to LVP ICT system and volunteer database
« Incorporate a crowd sourcing tool for good causes and provide access to
partner funding grants
« An events diary for each area which would highlight the activities people could
get involved in i.e. a litter pick, neighbourhood clear up, park support or public
meetings etc.
e A mapping function allowing public services to target development time at
those areas with less coverage
o A resource for public services, place based leaders and LVP Community
Support Volunteers to see what community assets are available in any given
area
« A facility that would allow similar social action groups or groups in the same
neighbourhood to be able to contact each other and collaborate
e A data base of social action leaders across the County that public services
could invite to local place based meetings

The vision for Our Lancashire is to:

“Bring together small local groups, clubs and associations across the county in one
place, showcasing the work they do to support people in their community and helping
them to grow.” Our Lancashire aims to be more than a directory, it will be the place
where people can find activities to get involved in, from go karting to knitting to litter
picking, somewhere to make new friends and make communities stronger, providing
a support network for people— hosted by the community for the community. It will
feature an events diary for every area of Lancashire and will also serve as a resource
for public services to see what community groups exist within an area, allowing them

Page 34

Page 50


https://ourlancashire.org.uk/
https://lancsvp.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/10/Lancashire-Volunteers-Partnership-Evaluation-Final.pdf

” II:IeaIthierh_ %
ancashire
‘fi’ South Cumbria

to signpost people who could benefit from the network and to involve groups in
meetings to improve where they live.

¥ https://voww.ourlancashire.org.uk/ O - 8 G & Our Lancashire | New Websit.. x| |

3£ OUR

‘@9 LANCASHIRE

LET'S
JOIN
TOGETHER

www.lancsvp.org.uk

« m G R © 2 OB F £ = 9 @ +~ 0o o) s ,
For the first time it will enable groups in the same neighbourhood to register their
work, to see each other and create the opportunity to work together and access
funding and support. This new and exciting programme will complete Lancashire’s
vulnerability triage and widen the County’s capacity to keep people engaged and
connected.”

Our Lancashire will provide a county-wide directory of services, but not a
professional referral mechanism. It must be noted, however, that the platform
will offer further support and networking to registered community groups that
does not appear to exist elsewhere at present. As this work is in progress
(Project Manager currently being recruited and funds in place for website and
database development) and will significantly overlap with existing and
developing social prescribing models, collaboration should be considered to
prevent duplication or inequality of community support (see 5.3 below)

3.4.3 FYI Directory
As discussed under section 2.5 above, the FYI Directory has been developed across
the Fylde Coast as a public facing directory of services. However, like many
directories, maintaining accuracy of the information can prove a challenge, and ICS
engagement has suggested that many link workers/care navigators no longer access
it due to lack of information currency. This could prove an excellent opportunity for
collaboration and development under the LGA pilot proposals below (section 5.3).

Page 35

Page 51



Healthier
’ Lancashire &
AW South Cumbria

3.4.4 MECCLink
MECC Link is a simple online tool designed to support to anyone delivering Making
Every Contact Count within Yorkshire and the Humber, and is currently under
consideration for rollout across Lancashire and South Cumbria.

MECC Link is designed to provide Very Brief Intervention (VBI) and signposting, to
support people to embed and extend prevention and promotion of wellbeing and
resilience into everyday practice by providing:

e Easily accessible information on key healthy lifestyle topics

e Suggested open questions using the Ask, Assist, Act model

¢ Information on a range of primary Self-care tools and resources

e Signposting to recommended national and local support services.

e On opportunity promote a social movement for MECC #MECCithappen

Although overlap exists with existing and future digital social prescribing and digital
prescribing (via Orcha and the NHS Apps site) initiatives, MECCLink adds the unique
opportunity for online very brief interventions. A single place-based directory of
services, as proposed in section 5.3 below would ensure that this offer avoids
duplication of service directory information and adds further value without additional
costs of creating and maintaining a directory.

3.4.5 Active Lancashire
Active Lancashire have been supporting the Lancashire and South Cumbria health
and care system with opportunities to increase access to physical activity for some
years, and have actively engaged in supporting the third sector as a whole to support
better health and wealth for all.

Active Lancashire have proposed an Active Ageing Alliance (full details in Appendix
A) which aims to coordinate the social prescribing offer for people aged over 50 in
Lancashire. This model could be incorporated into the proposals made in section 5.3
below, with Active Lancashire essentially acting as a broker for third sector
organisations, offering the VCFS support and micro-commissioning third sector
services in parts of Lancashire where multiple small contractual arrangements exist,
rather than a unified approach such as in East Lancashire.

Page 36

Page 52


https://mecclink.co.uk/
http://www.makingeverycontactcount.co.uk/
http://www.makingeverycontactcount.co.uk/
https://lancashire.orcha.co.uk/
https://apps.nhs.uk/
https://www.activelancashire.org.uk/

” II:IeaIthierh_ %
ancashire
‘fi’ South Cumbria

Active Lancashire proposed model for Active Ageing Alliance:

HOW DOES THE [ )

Lancashire 4, Population
AAA WORK FOR THE
CUSTOMER (1)? G T T

. seﬂgg%a @

/—\ ¥ 4 N
. . _ Hospital
® Person 50+ with LTC has non-medical HSUYuGUICod i

need for support

l-:ugimmy Crtt ria
® |dentified/referred by self, GP, INT, VCF w
organisation

([ Assessment arm Matching Team )

® Assessment and matching team works D-rectoworServnces
with customer to identify VCF support m
. . . Suj ain
using Directory of Services ﬁ‘ﬂ? / e
® Locality VCF provider works with Ry 5 Recoven
others and community assets to deliver Social Community

Prescribing Asset

support by co-ordinated supply chain

HOW DOES THE MODEL WORK FOR
COMMISSIONERS AND PROVIDERS?

e & & GG 0@ &G
VAN AN,
CONCT) cmmo (1) (o)

\ ‘/Spg ormissioner sategy & plans bidding or pic

Contractual Lead Contractor naging s DDly’cham QA ance managemen ot 2CRM,

Relationships

. . NHS CCGS, local authorities (so e, public health, DFGs, housing)

clive em NHS large scale providers, Better c F nd, Health & Wellbei qE ard

Active Ageing

Alliance Model ‘ 2 presention, early
intervention, n s, reduction
in 5, reduction in residential nursing home a issions

Community Asset

CA=

4. Other considerations

4.1 Integration with existing and proposed HLSC digital

developments
At present, we are piloting a patient-facing app as a central portal to all our citizens’
healthcare needs, the NHS Online Orb app. We are also in the process of

Page 37

Page 53


https://youtu.be/2Z4DEWCwlbs

Healthier
’ Lancashire &
AW South Cumbria

developing a Person-Held Record in collaboration with Parsek Vitaly, who host our
shared care records platform; and a wellbeing platform, similar to the Good Thinking
digital wellbeing service in London, is currently being considered as part of our
delivery plan, but will be worked up with our citizens prior to any major financial
investment or implementation. Any of these options, which would be fully
implemented across the ICS, could offer a single point of access to any locally (ICP)
procured social prescribing platform or directory of service. Further, these citizen-
facing platforms would allow for a much more targeted approach to disseminating
health, wellbeing, and health and care information, including both personalised care
information as well as population and public health messaging.

Following successful adoption of the Patient Activation Measure (PAM) and training
of both qualified professionals and those in care navigator roles as part of a Fylde
Coast Vanguard, this model is now being rolled out across the Healthier Lancashire
and South Cumbria integrated care system, including a Train the Trainer scheme.
The Personalised Care demonstrator site programme provides an opportunity to
facilitate this adoption at an increased pace, and adopting a digital social prescribing
platform offers us an opportunity to embed PAM usage at scale across the region.

4.2 Digital literacy of third sector organisations
We take the view that digital literacy underpins digital health literacy, and recognise
that not all of our frontline, including some smaller third sector organisations, will
have high levels of digital literacy to support them to communicate digitally, to access
social prescribing platforms at the provider end, or to gather and collate patient-
reported or other outcome measures in a digital manner. Further exploratory work is
being undertaken to see how we can support these smaller organisations across the
system who may be delivering only small pockets of support, but which is very
meaningful to the citizens they serve.

4.3 Co-production and digital delivery planning
NHS England (2017°) have emphasised the importance of co-production with people
with lived experience in delivering personalised care. They recommend that
personalised care planning should:
¢ include patients and carers with lived experience on the development of the
specification and the interview panels

? https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/09/harnessing-technoloqgy-
personalised-care.pdf

Page 38

Page 54


https://parsek.com/platform
https://www.healthylondon.org/our-work/mental-health/good-thinking-digital-wellbeing/
https://www.healthylondon.org/our-work/mental-health/good-thinking-digital-wellbeing/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/09/harnessing-technology-personalised-care.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/09/harnessing-technology-personalised-care.pdf

” Il:lealthierh_ %
ancashire
5’ South Cumbria

e ensure co-production starts at the beginning of the development of the
specification and not as an afterthought

o fully explore the requirements of care and support planning by identifying the
experiences patient and carers want to have using a service

e understand what areas are important to the patient and carer

e think through and work with their IT supplier about how they link the different
patient datasets to summarise and tell their story once

o facilitate engagement of IT suppliers with people with lived experience

¢ include people with lived experience in consideration of issues of information
governance, information sharing and privacy.

At Healthier Lancashire and South Cumbria, we aim to embed co-production within
all our digital transformation programmes, engaging authentically and proactively
with our service users and partner organisations, including third sector organisations.
Our Digital Delivery plan has recently been worked up with our stakeholders and
service users to reflect our Digital Strategy and the needs of those partners. Our
Digital Strategy can be seen to place Empowering the Person at the very heart of all
our digital programmes of work (see diagram below) with all other workstreams being
for the central goal of empowering our citizens and communities.

Five inter-connected themes to improve our health
and care in Lancashire and South Cumbria

i

Support the Integrate
frontline . services

Empower the person

N 3¢

Manage e Create
the system JL ]\ the future

more effectively \

iy

PHARMACY

S
& &
y

Page 39

Page 55


https://www.healthierlsc.co.uk/
https://www.healthierlsc.co.uk/application/files/6115/2837/9879/Our_Digital_Future_-_Healthier_Lancashire_and_South_Cumbria.pdf

Healthier
’ Lancashire &
AW South Cumbria

To take involvement of people with lived experience to a further level would mean to
engage in an asset-based approach to community development, as detailed by
McKnight and Russell (2018).

5. Recommendations

5.1 Proposed investment opportunities within Personalised Care

demonstrator site year (2018/19)
Any proposals to invest in social prescribing should address the goal of empowering
communities and individuals, rather than focussing purely on referral mechanisms.

Opportunities our stakeholders have expressed interest in support with include:

e A system-wide mechanism for measuring use and socioeconomic, as well as
wellbeing outcomes, of social prescribing

¢ Deployment of one of the above platforms to facilitate local ICP referral
pathways into social / community resources, including a self-referral pathway
— this could be achieved across a single CCG locality, or in testbed areas
across multiple CCGs within the ICS with a view to wider rollout if successful
and sustainable funding sources secured

e Academic support for evaluation of the wider clinical, wellbeing and
socioeconomic impact of social prescribing

e Supporting the integration/development of a place-based directory of
services

e Supporting communities to adopt an asset-based community development
approach — some useful tips to consider when developing a community’s
assets are explored by Russell (2017).

5.2 Wider considerations / potential collaborators

As referenced in the above discussion, opportunities exist to collaborate at scale with
the Local Government Association, independent organisations such as Digital Gaps
(supported the LGA place-based directory work in Bristol), Flexidigital (see below,
and have worked extensively with Active Lancashire to create health data
ecosystems and develop predictive modelling based on open-source data), and
VCEFS brokers such as Active Lancashire or the local CVS organisations.

Page 40

Page 56


https://www.nurturedevelopment.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/09/4_Essential_Elements_of_ABCD_Process.pdf
https://www.nurturedevelopment.org/blog/abcd-approach/part-3-importance-asking/
https://www.digitalgaps.co.uk/
https://flexiapp.co.uk/
https://www.activelancashire.org.uk/

Healthier
’ Lancashire &
AW South Cumbria

Flexidigital’'s HealthHub gives people the power to share their health data with
providers that can provide better care and services. They also help providers
access, understand, and leverage their consumers' health information. Through a
growing distribution network of integrations, Flexi have created a simple, on-
demand way for everyone to exchange and use the health data they need,
pioneering data-driven, consumer-centric health care.

Flexidigital approach to connecting healthcare data:

Further areas for exploration during and beyond the demonstrator site year could
include:

e Incentivising volunteering and social activities. Well Skelmersdale in West
Lancashire have been utilising the Better Points app to reward people for
activities, this is discussed in more detail on the Well Skelmersdale blog. A
similar scheme, Chorley Time Credits has been rewarding people for their
time spent volunteering for local communities and public services. In East
Lancashire, volunteer community connectors are recruited who provide a
sustainable approach to expansion of the community connector scheme and
are supporting groups to set up peer to peer support groups from external
funding outside of the CCG social prescribing grants.

Consideration should be given to integrating such schemes with a digital
social prescribing offer in the future.

e Considering ways to support the development of sustainable cohesive
communities. The work of Cormac Russell and Nurture Development is

quite well known, and the principles of Asset-Based Community
Development (ABCD) should be considered when developing any

Page 41

Page 57


https://www.betterpoints.uk/
https://wellskelmersdale.wordpress.com/2018/11/07/betterpoints-for-better-health/?fbclid=IwAR3KFaJj22fS5lohr6qBIlWnkwzGwxvuHe49y02i6qjM31ZLhOLCV4ve35I
http://chorley.gov.uk/Pages/AtoZ/Chorley-Time-Credits.aspx

” Il:lealthierh_ %
ancashire
:.i.' South Cumbria

community offering. The principles guiding this can be found in The Four
Essential Elements of an Assed-Based Community Development Approach,
and are illustrated below:

Identifying & Productively
Connecting Unconnected
Local Assets

L Wit oun we &0 wloos®
2 What oan do with some cutaide

-t
3 Whatdu we wast dane e wr?

This is not a map, but a compass. Start with any element, but go to every element.

Further opportunities for community development could include exploring the
approach taken by TGL Hubs who are currently exploring a community
platform with Mydex, which will be available in 2019.

And any development of communities cannot overlook the funding and other
resource necessary to support community development. In a recent Kings
Fund blog, it was highlighted that Integrated Care Systems and their
organisations “need to be serious about their role in supporting a vibrant
voluntary and community sector, over and above investing in specific
services.”

5.3 Recommendations
Based on the overall findings and information reported in this paper, it is
recommended that the Personalised Care Steering group propose the following on
behalf of Healthier Lancashire & South Cumbria:
e Community of Practice

Page 42

Page 58


https://www.nurturedevelopment.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/09/4_Essential_Elements_of_ABCD_Process.pdf
https://www.nurturedevelopment.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/09/4_Essential_Elements_of_ABCD_Process.pdf
http://tglhubs.com/
https://mydex.org/
https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/blog/2018/12/social-prescribing-part-something-bigger
https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/blog/2018/12/social-prescribing-part-something-bigger

Page 43

Healthier
’ Lancashire &
AW South Cumbria

The ICS should support the development of a community of practice that
includes representation from each ICP, including public sector providers and
commissioners, members of VCSF organisations and patients/members of
the public to share learning and help shape the strategic expansion of local
social prescribing programmes and a standardised approach to the
digitisation of social prescribing access and reporting across the region.
This would help improve the equity of the social prescribing offer across the
region and help facilitate streamlined regional support for local
implementation. This group would feed into the Building Health Partnership
group, the Personalised Care steering group under the Population Health
portfolio and the Out of Hospital portfolio.

ICS-wide infrastructure: place-based directory of services

To further develop a unified regional social prescribing strategy, it is strongly
recommended that we work in collaboration with the LGA and possible
collaborators mentioned above to develop a single open-source place-based
directory of services that can be maintained by a single team, the data of
which can be consumed by any locally held and procured digital platforms,
as well as other organisations seeking to develop alternative routes to
community-based services, such as the Citizens’ Advice Bureau and Our
Lancashire.

This will prevent the otherwise inevitable duplication of service lists as well
as the inaccuracy and lack of currency of directories that are not maintained
in a ‘live’ setting. Many of the organisations discussed above have
expressed interest in working in a collaborative manner, and the work
already conducted in Bristol has created the foundations on which this work
can be built.

Support personalised care by offering digital social prescribing
Currently West Lancashire and Morecambe Bay are developing their social
prescribing offer via a digital platform. It is recommended that East
Lancashire and Blackburn with Darwen, Fylde Coast and Central Lancashire
undertake the Digital Maturity Index assessment linked in 3.2 above, with a
view to centrally procuring a digital social prescribing platform with
demonstrator site funds, which would require ongoing local financial support
after the first year. This support would facilitate an equal opportunity to
access digital social prescribing across the region.

During consultation, ICPs have expressed interest in piloting the Elemental

platform, and it is proposed that the learning from the West Lancashire
Elemental pilot study should be used as a basis for wider rollout across the

Page 59



IF_Iecﬂthierh_ %
ancashire
5’ South Cumbria

ICS, rather than repeating pilot studies within further neighbourhood
localities.

The following conclusions can be made on the three digital social
prescribing platforms reviewed:

Linda Vernon

o Refernet does not currently meet requirements, as it does not
support integration with clinical or social care systems, and does not
support a self-referral mechanism.

o Elemental meets all requirements and standards set out above,
and could be considered by ICPs seeking to adopt a bespoke social
prescribing platform without the added complexity of whole system
patient flow. Elemental offers the most affordable option of those
reviewed for system-wide rollout within this financial year. Other
products not reviewed above may also meet requirements and be
suitable for consideration.

o Strata meets all requirements and standards set out above, and
could be considered by ICPs seeking to adopt a whole system patient
flow approach across primary, secondary and social care, within the
context of a wider review of inter-dependencies with other systems
and processes (e.g. eRS). Other products not reviewed above may
also meet requirements and be suitable for consideration.

Responsibility Date Version

Digital Leader 01.11.18 V1.0

Linda Vernon

Digital Leader 30.04.19 V1.2

Page 44

Page 60




Agenda ltem 5

Health Scrutiny Committee
Meeting to be held on Tuesday, 14 May 2019

Electoral Division affected:
(All Divisions);

The issue of Period Poverty and how it can best be addressed

Contact for further information:
Dr Sakthi Karunanithi, Andrea Smith, sakthi.karunanithi@lancashire.gov.uk,
andrea.smith@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

This report as requested by Full Council provides an outline of the issue of period
poverty and how engagement with the work of the national government taskforce
would further support a collaborative approach across Lancashire.
Recommendation

The Health Scrutiny Committee is asked to:

1. Note the information contained in the report

2. Formulate any recommendations on how to engage with the Government's
joint taskforce on period poverty

3. Formulate any recommendations as to how to collaboratively develop and
implement supportive interventions as a result, across Lancashire.

Background and Advice
Full Council at its meeting held on 18 October 2018, resolved that:

"Council welcomes the recent commitment from the Scottish Government to tackle
Period Poverty and the pledge from the Minister for Women, Victoria Atkins, to
remove VAT from sanitary products following Brexit.

Council notes research that suggests one in ten girls have at some point been
unable to afford sanitary products with 49% having missed an entire day of school
because of their period.

Council also notes some of the work already going on in this area from the likes of
Red Box, The Girl Guiding Association and the sanitary product manufacturer,
Always.

ir
Lancastic
Council (?,g:;.s\?

Page 61



Council recognises however that whilst many women and girls will benefit from this,
there is scope to work with partners to provide help to others who may be in
vulnerable situations.

Lancashire County Council therefore:

e Instructs the Director of Public Health to produce a report to the Health
Scrutiny Committee on the issue of Period Poverty and how it can best be
addressed.

e Commits to work and consult with all our partners including the NHS, girls,
Schools, Colleges, Universities and those mentioned above to understand the
local issues, raise awareness and tackle stigma."

Period poverty is a global issue. Worldwide, across low and middle-income
countries it is estimated that over half of all women and girls are forced to use
homemade products, rags, grass or paper to manage their periods. In many
countries there is a lack of information and appropriate water, sanitation and hygiene
facilities.

It is also an issue in the UK and in Lancashire. Research suggests one in ten girls
between the ages of 14 to 21 years in the UK have, at some point, been unable to
afford sanitary products with 49 per cent having missed an entire day of school
because of their period. 64 per cent of girls have missed a PE or sport lesson
because of their period, of which 52 per cent of girls have made up a lie or excuse.
There is no specific information available on period poverty within Lancashire.

There is work already going on in this area from organisations such as Red Box, The
Girl Guiding Association and the sanitary ware manufacturer, Always. In addition to
this, there is activity in some local schools across Lancashire.

Government's Response to Period Poverty:

On 4 March this year the Minister for Women and Equalities, Penny Mordaunt,
announced that the Government would establish a new joint taskforce on period
poverty in the UK. This initiative recognises the importance of tackling period poverty
for the dignity and empowerment of women and girls. Ms Mordaunt announced that
up to £250,000 has been committed in seed funding to support the work. An update
on the Government's response on Period Poverty made on 24 April 2019, is
available on Parliament's website.

The taskforce will launch in June 2019 and will bring together a range of different
organisations working on period poverty from across the public, private and third
sectors. Its objective will be to join up learning and ideas and develop a
comprehensive, sustainable response. By linking different sectors, it will build on the
range of diverse initiatives that already exist, promoting those which are delivering
impact, and helping them to grow and become sustainable. Priorities for the
taskforce include:

Page 62


https://www.parliament.uk/business/publications/written-questions-answers-statements/written-statement/Commons/2019-04-24/HCWS1522/
https://www.parliament.uk/business/publications/written-questions-answers-statements/written-statement/Commons/2019-04-24/HCWS1522/

e Obtaining better evidence and understanding of how period poverty affects
different groups in our society;

e Addressing the stigma;

¢ Role of education, communications and role models in shifting social attitudes

In the Spring Statement of 13 March 2019, the Chancellor, Phillip Hammond,
announced support for a new scheme to provide free sanitary products in secondary
schools and further education colleges.

On April 16th, it was further announced that free period products will be offered to
girls in all primary schools in England from early next year. Extending the
programme to all primary schools follows feedback from teachers, students and
parents. The Department for Education is now working with key stakeholders in the
public and private sector to roll-out the programme in a cost-effective manner that
supports girls and young women across the country.

Useful links:

Research on period poverty: https://plan-uk.org/media-centre/plan-international-uks-
research-on-period-poverty-and-stigma

For consideration:

A population-wide approach is required in order to break the stigma, foster dignity
and raise awareness to address the reality that too many girls lack the knowledge
and understanding of how to manage their period, are too afraid to ask for advice,
and are unable to afford the products to support them.

We intend to continue:

1. Elected member engagement to review the outcomes and findings of the new
taskforce and their application to Lancashire.

2. Sharing of best practice and evidence based approaches from this taskforce
with a view to implementation in Lancashire in conjunction with our
communities, schools and local partners including the NHS, girls, schools,
colleges and universities.

The Health Scrutiny Committee is asked to:
1. Note the information contained in the report

2. Formulate any recommendations on how to engage with the Government's
joint taskforce on period poverty

3. Formulate any recommendations as to how to collaboratively develop and
implement supportive interventions as a result, across Lancashire.

Page 63


https://plan-uk.org/media-centre/plan-international-uks-research-on-period-poverty-and-stigma
https://plan-uk.org/media-centre/plan-international-uks-research-on-period-poverty-and-stigma

Consultations

N/A

Implications:

This item has the following implications, as indicated:
Risk management

This report has no significant risk implications.

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel
None
Reason for inclusion in Part Il, if appropriate

N/A

Page 64



Agenda ltem 6

Health Scrutiny Committee
Meeting to be held on Tuesday, 14 May 2019

Electoral Division affected:
(All Divisions);

Report of the Health Scrutiny Steering Group

Contact for further information:
Debra Jones, Tel: (01772) 537996, Democratic Services Officer,
Debra.jones@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

Overview of matters presented and considered by the Health Scrutiny Steering
Group at its meeting held on 17 April 2019.

Recommendation

The Health Scrutiny Committee is asked to receive the report of its Steering Group.

Background and Advice

The Steering Group is made up of the Chair and Deputy Chair of the Health Scrutiny
Committee plus two additional members, one each nominated by the Conservative
and Labour Groups.

The main purpose of the Steering Group is to manage the workload of the
Committee more effectively in the light of increasing number of changes to health
services which are considered to be substantial. The main functions of the Steering
Group are listed below:

e To act as a preparatory body on behalf of the Committee to develop the following
aspects in relation to planned topics/reviews scheduled on the Committee's work
plan:

o Reasons/focus, objectives and outcomes for scrutiny review;

o Develop key lines of enquiry;

o Request evidence, data and/or information for the report to the Committee;
o Determine who to invite to the Committee.

e To act as the first point of contact between Scrutiny and the Health Service
e Trusts and Clinical Commissioning Groups;

e To liaise, on behalf of the Committee, with Health Service Trusts and Clinical
Commissioning Groups;

ir
Lancastic
Council (?,g:;.s\?

Page 65



e To make proposals to the Committee on whether they consider NHS service
changes to be ‘substantial’ thereby instigating further consultation with scrutiny;

e To develop and maintain its own work programme for the Committee to consider
and allocate topics accordingly;

e To invite any local Councillor(s) whose ward(s) as well as any County
Councillor(s) whose division(s) are/will be affected to sit on the Group for the
duration of the topic to be considered.

It is important to note that the Steering Group is not a formal decision making body
and that it will report its activities and any aspect of its work to the Committee for
consideration and agreement.

Meeting held on 17 April 2019:
+« Adult Social Care Learning from Complaints

Tony Pounder and Angela Esslinger presented a report regarding Adult Social Care:
Learning from Complaints and distributed a supporting document detailing a review
of progress of the Care Act Policies, Procedures and Guidance as of February 2019.
A copy is set out in the minutes.

The Chair asked for assurance and understanding of improvements to assessments
and care planning, charging policies and the administration of blue badges and
disabled facilities grants. These had been highlighted as areas that Lancashire
County Council recorded the highest number of complaints as identified in the Local
Government and Social Care Ombudsman's annual review of complaints for
2017/18.

The following questions were asked and responded to:

¢ In respect of Lancashire, is the Ombudsman correct that there's been a shift from
one-off mistakes to problems with the whole system and the county council's
policies and procedures being incorrectly applied?

It was confirmed that Adult Social Care worked closely with the internal audit and
complaints team to identify any potential emerging themes and to respond to any
patterns. For example, in 2016 there were long waiting times for occupational
therapy assessment and provision, for which a public apology was given at Full
Council. A service review was undertaken and extra staff were budgeted for,
resulting in an increase of 15 to 40 occupational therapists, including additional
management. The 2017 internal audit provided positive assurance of policies and
procedures for occupational therapy. This showed how the service had reacted to
complaints in a robust and systematic way.

The Ombudsman had highlighted a high number of complaints regarding the
accuracy and charging for adult social care in Lancashire. Again the service
responded to this by ensuring additional staff were in place for more timely
assessments for direct payments and the internal audit review had revealed
substantial assurance was in place for this area.

Page 66



There had been recent issues regarding top-up payments, where an additional
cost was incurred by the family for care homes charging a higher rate than the
council allowed for. The Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman had
identified that authorities were not explaining top-up payments and a policy to
take account of the required improvements that need to take place had been
drafted.

When there was evidence of emerging problems, the service was open and
honest with the complaints team and worked together to frame a policy response
that reflected best practice and to ensure appropriate measures were put into
place to reduce problems.

Some complaints to the Ombudsman had highlighted that the council was
charging people in a way that was unreasonable and had resulted in
reimbursements.

Have all the county council's adult social care policies been amended to reflect
the Care Act 20147

The Steering Group reviewed the Care Act Policies, Procedures and Guidance
Review of Progress as of February 2019. The most up to date (March 2019)
version is set out in the minutes). It was explained that policies had been updated
where required and measures were in place to approve others. It was highlighted
that the list included existing policies and practices that required reshaping as a
result of lessons learned from complaints. In 2015, the Senior Leadership Team
had agreed to prioritise the review of those policies which would give maximum
benefit to the largest numbers of the population who would be affected.

Are there any longstanding or emerging issues that may be the root cause to the
number of complaints (irrespective of population size/deprivation/health) lodged
with the Ombudsman?

It was explained that the publicity around the anticipated Green Paper on social
care for adults to explore the issue of how social care is funded (which continued
to be delayed) had made the public more aware. There was an expectation that
individuals should have a clearer account of what they are being charged for, why
and what the affordable options were. Often the journey from hospital to a care
home resulted in complaints from families that they have been charged without
being warned in advance and the council needed to ensure that systems were
robust enough to prevent this. Care from the NHS was not chargeable, but social
care was and complaints often arose when someone was discharged from the
NHS but required continuing health care.

It was confirmed that the complaints process for the NHS was the same as the
council's, but was much slower and included the opportunity to appeal decisions.
Due to the extended length of time, social care costs often would remain unpaid
as the power to claim money back was time limited. However 97% of charges
were paid.

Page 67



In response to further questions raised by members, the following information was
clarified:

e The trend for supporting adults at home rather than in a care home could be
attributed not only to cost savings but also to cultural and altruistic reasons. A
small number of complaints had been received regarding reclaiming equity from
home for care.

e The council accepted verbal complaints as well as electronic submissions via the
telephone contact centre. Complaints were kept within a single team to ensure
they were logged, addressed and tracked, in order to make the process simpler
and to ensure a swift response. The team also dealt with the Ombudsman and
advocacy services to ensure support was provided where needed. The public
were also able to complain via a councillor.

e Members were pleased to note that council had increased staffing of
occupational therapists in response to complaints regarding delays in and lack of
assessment.

¢ |t was noted that although the service was good at assisting adults with complex
needs, there were issues supporting people with Special Educational Needs or a
Disability (SEND) into adult life. The council had responded to the Ofsted
inspection which had highlighted shortcomings in this area by recruiting a lead for
SEND. Work was underway to address the concerns and Tony Pounder would
discuss the joint work underway with Children's Services colleagues and report
back to the Steering Group via Democratic Services. Members expected that the
progress made in Adult Services could also be made for young adults with a
special educational need or disability.

¢ Relatives were made aware of the costs and options for paying for care from the
start and this was done correctly in the majority of cases. Due to work pressures,
in some cases officers and NHS staff had not given families enough time to
reflect on the impact and the options available. In a crisis, relatives were often
compelled to make decisions regarding care in a short and often emotional period
of time. There was a strong argument for the production of public information for
relatives to take away and reflect on. Getting it right could be a significant
challenge and social workers and occupational therapists worked hard to explain
the options so families could make informed choices.

If there were no capital assets or savings, the council often met the greater share
of costs and the family could make top-up payments if they preferred to select a
different care home than Lancashire County Council chose. Where there were
assets, arrangements would be made to release the capital. The Care Act 2014
made provision for deferred payments to allow families to make a decision and
pay for care when the house was sold.

e The council bought in independent advocacy services via Lancashire Hub, where
people could be signposted for their specific issue.

Page 68



e The difficulties around the slow handling of complaints by NHS Trusts was a
common theme. There was generally an increased peak in activity around winter
discharges. Clinical Commissioning Groups delegated continuing healthcare
complaints upon discharge, however Lancashire Care Foundation Trust and
Lancashire Teaching Hospitals Foundation Trust were no longer part of this
arrangement which could create a risk for the future handling of complaints.

e Lancashire County Council currently employed 40 occupational therapists and
were currently looking at recruiting 3 more. Looking at the ideal staffing level, for
comparison purposes Oxfordshire County Council employed 70 and Lancashire
was on a journey of growing this workforce. However the occupational therapists
did work closely with NHS colleagues. Recruitment was proactive and Lancashire
had invested in more occupational therapist management to ensure that all
aspects of the role were made clear. The post had been made more attractive
and management were ensuring staff would be given a manageable workload.
The council were transforming services for older people, improving outcomes and
making pathways more efficient. Effective occupational therapists focused on
reducing long term costs through improved prevention and the budget was
rebalanced to reflect this.

It was suggested that a report regarding the impact of additional recruitment on
waiting times for assessment be presented at a future meeting of the Health Scrutiny
Committee.

Resolved: That;

1. A briefing note be circulated to the Steering Group reporting on how public
complaints would be dealt with effectively under the new arrangements.

2. A report regarding the impact of recruitment of additional occupational therapists
on waiting times be presented to a future meeting of the Health Scrutiny
Committee.

+ Responses to Quality Accounts 2018/19

The Chair welcomed Oliver Pearson, who explained his role and responsibility for
responding to the annual Trusts' Quality Accounts.

It was noted that Healthwatch provided a commentary regarding the appearance of
the accounts and how they could be made more user friendly. He also checked if the
priorities were correct compared to recent Care Quality Commission (CQC) reports
and patient feedback as the accounts should show a clear pathway to improvement.
It was stressed that it was important to provide high quality, balanced feedback,
including suggestions for improvements for future accounts.

The following positives from the Lancashire Teaching Hospital Foundation Trust
Quality Accounts were shared:

e The views regarding priorities matched those of Healthwatch surveys and
CQC reports.

e The Chief Executive's statement set the scene, however there were incorrect
links to the Trust's intranet site rather than internet.

Page 69



The STAR team who carried out checks on wards, however more information
regarding who was involved would have been useful. Many trusts invite
councillors, lay people, and sometimes carry out mock CQC inspections.
The appointment of a Director of Continuous Improvement and a Head of
Continuous Improvement.

Comprehensive information regarding the required clinical audits.
Achievements against delivery of Commissioning for Quality & Innovation
(CQUINSs). If the Trust achieved certain standards they received additional
funding.

Inclusion of their provision for whistleblowing, required for adherence to a
recent change in legislation following the Gosport Inquiry.

Areas that would be highlighted for improvement included:

The inclusion of complicated graphs that were confusing for members of the
public.

The lack of benchmarking against similar organisations in terms of response
times and other areas.

The following positives from the Lancashire Care Foundation Trust Quality Accounts
were shared:

The Trust was working with Northumberland Tyne and Wear NHS Trust, who
were rated as excellent.

The accounts honestly stated what work needed to be done.

The Trust was looking to improve peer support.

Areas that would be highlighted for improvement included:

The accounts were too reliant on narrative and needed more visual aids. They
were very descriptive, but too wordy to be user friendly.

The accounts didn't give an idea of the scale of work that needed to be done.
There was no benchmarking, Healthwatch would suggest this as an addition
for next year, alongside the inclusion of charts for comparison purposes.

The accounts would benefit from more data around staff morale, specifying
which services were affected.

There was no reference to whistleblowing provision, i.e. Freedom to Speak
Up and the Gosport Inquiry.

In response to questions raised by members the following information was clarified:

Non-executive directors did play a major role in influencing and challenging
the Trust and its executive directors. For example in Morecambe they had
undertaken ward inspections with Healthwatch, talking directly to patients,
introducing staff from different sites. In terms of non-executive directors giving
timely responses, Healthwatch may be able to help make organisations more
open, but did not have the power, unlike the Health Scrutiny function to insist
on the provision of information. Healthwatch would be pleased to work
together with Health Scrutiny and to liaise to make positive changes to the
culture of NHS transparency.

Page 70



e The content that had to be included in the Quality Accounts was statutory and
therefore may not necessarily include current local issues such as the closure
of Accident and Emergency, the temporary closure of maternity services at
Chorley hospital and the Our Health Our Care Programme. However it was
confirmed that if Health Scrutiny wanted the inclusion of topical local issues
this could be suggested for the 2019/20 accounts and this response would be
published.

e It was confirmed that the Quality Accounts for the University Hospitals of
Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust were commended as an excellent
example of Quality Accounts.

The Steering Group agreed to use the stakeholder Feedback Questionnaire provided
by a different Trust as a template for providing a statement to the Quality Accounts.

It was suggested that in view of the discussions held, the clerk could formulate a
draft statement for inclusion in the formal statements to the 2018/19 Trusts' Quality
Accounts for Lancashire Teaching Hospitals and Lancashire Care Foundation Trust.
And for these to be circulated to members of the Steering Group for approval prior to
submission.

Resolved: That draft statements be compiled from the points highlighted at the
meeting and circulated to the Steering Group for final approval prior to submission.

+ Housing with Care and Support Strategy task and finish group request

Joanne Reed, Head of Service for Policy, Information & Commissioning; Craig Frost,
Policy, Information and Commissioning Manager and Julie Dockerty, Policy,
Information and Commissioning Senior Manager attended the meeting to respond to
any questions raised in relation to the request for a task and finish group to review
the Housing with Care and Support Strategy in more detail.

It was reported that the comments raised in the 2 April Health Scrutiny meeting had
been discussed with County Councillor Gooch and Louise Taylor, Executive Director
of Adult Services and Health and Wellbeing and as a result some revisions to the
language of the strategy were being progressed in order to emphasise the strategy
would provide more choice. It was also confirmed that it needed to make clear how
housing with care and support supports the continuum of need and was not
replacing current services. The detail that had been queried at the Health Scrutiny
meeting would be included in the delivery of the strategy at a local level. This
included engagement with individuals, which would be undertaken at the planning
and decision making stage, not at strategy level. The draft strategy had opened up
opportunities to discuss a best practice approach with partners. It was noted that
case studies had been submitted for modern living and these were circulated for
review (copies of which are set out in the minutes). It was clarified that once the
strategy had been agreed, the planning stage could take up to 5 years, therefore
local engagement would be appropriate at a later stage as needs identified now were
likely to change before implementation.

Page 71



In terms of housing provision a discrepancy had been highlighted between district
expectation and actual requirements. A needs analysis at a district and a
neighbourhood level would take place and Lancashire County Council would consult
with districts on a draft framework for implementation. It was emphasised that the
strategy signalled the intent and would inform a range of work strands to ensure the
right services were in place at the right time.

Members made the following comments:

e The Scrutiny function would like to have sight of the implementation document
that demonstrated how the strategy was working and emphasised the importance
of undertaking due diligence for providers expressing an interest.

e In line with the responsibility to support people to live healthy lives, there was a
need to plan for those with higher levels of complex needs and options for
housing would need to reflect this on an individual level.

e In response to a question it was confirmed that the funding would be from a
combination of registered providers and Homes England. It was not anticipated
that Lancashire County Council would be required to provide funding. There had
been some clarity regarding welfare reforms which had assuaged concern in the
development sector for this type of housing, resulting in increased confidence in
the market. It was clarified that rental levels for specialist housing was high due to
the necessity of individual specifications and therefore there was no cap on
housing benefits.

Following a discussion members concluded that it was not appropriate to set up a
task and finish group as the strategy was an overarching document, broad in intent
and any issues raised would be dealt with at the planning and implementation stage.

Resolved: That

1. The request for a task and finish group to review the Housing with Care and
Support Strategy be refused.

2. The Cabinet Members for Adult Social Care and Health and Wellbeing provide
assurances to the Health Scrutiny function that closer working relationships are
established between the county council and all district councils to ensure
provision is in place so that the strategy can be successful.

3. The county council takes every opportunity to respond to district council
consultations on their forthcoming local plans to encourage the implementation of
the Strategy's intentions.

4. The final approved Housing with Care and Support Strategy be circulated to all
members of the Health Scrutiny Committee in May 2019.

5. An update report on the implementation of the Strategy be presented to the
Health Scrutiny Committee in 12 months' time.

Page 72



Consultations

N/A

Implications:

This item has the following implications, as indicated:
Risk management

This report has no significant risk implications.

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel
None
Reason for inclusion in Part Il, if appropriate

N/A

Page 73



Page 74



Agenda ltem 7

Health Scrutiny Committee
Meeting to be held on Tuesday, 14 May 2019

Electoral Division affected:
(All Divisions);

Health Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2018/19
(Appendix A refers)

Contact for further information:
Debra Jones, Tel: 01772 537996, Democratic Services Officer,
Debra.Jones@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

The work programme for both the Health Scrutiny Committee and its Steering Group
is set out at appendix A.

Recommendation
The Health Scrutiny Committee is asked to
1. Note and comment on the report.
2. Note that work programming for 2019/20 municipal year will be undertaken

by the Health Scrutiny Steering Group at its meeting scheduled for
Wednesday 19 June 2019 at 10:30am.

Background and Advice

A statement of the work and potential topics to be undertaken and considered by the
Health Scrutiny Committee and its Steering Group for the remainder of the 2018/19
municipal year is set out at appendix A, which includes the dates of all scheduled
Committee and Steering Group meetings. The work programme is presented to each
meeting for information.

The work programme is a work in progress document. The topics included were
identified by the Steering Group at its meeting held on 16 May 2018.

The work programme for the 2019/20 municipal year will be discussed by the
Steering Group at its meeting held on 19 June 2019. All members of the Health
Scrutiny Committee are invited to the meeting.
Consultations
N/A

Lancashire

County ‘6“-:%-?.
Council (&g\?

Page 75



Implications:

This item has the following implications, as indicated:
Risk management

This report has no significant risk implications.

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel
None
Reason for inclusion in Part Il, if appropriate

N/A

Page 76



/) abed

Appendix 'A’
Health Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2018/19

The Health Scrutiny Committee Work Programme details the planned activity to be undertaken over the forthcoming municipal year
through scheduled Committee meetings, task group, events and through use of the 'rapporteur' model.

The items on the work programme are determined by the Committee following the work programming session carried out by the
Steering Group at the start of the municipal year in line with the Overview and Scrutiny Committees terms of reference detailed in
the County Council's Constitution. This includes provision for the rights of County Councillors to ask for any matter to be
considered by the Committee or to call-in decisions.

Coordination of the work programme activity is undertaken by the Chair and Deputy Chair of all of the Scrutiny Committees to avoid
potential duplication.

In addition to the terms of reference outlined in the Constitution (Part 2 Article 5) for all Overview and Scrutiny Committees, the
Health Scrutiny Committee will:

e To scrutinise matters relating to health and adult social care delivered by the authority, the National Health Service and other
relevant partners.

e In reviewing any matter relating to the planning, provision and operation of the health service in the area, to invite interested

parties to comment on the matter and take account of relevant information available, particularly that provided by the Local
Healthwatch

e In the case of contested NHS proposals for substantial service changes, to take steps to reach agreement with the NHS body

e In the case of contested NHS proposals for substantial service changes where agreement cannot be reached with the NHS,
to refer the matter to the relevant Secretary of State.

e To refer to the relevant Secretary of State any NHS proposal which the Committee feels has been the subject of inadequate
consultation.

e To scrutinise the social care services provided or commissioned by NHS bodies exercising local authority functions under the
Health and Social Care Act 2012.

Lancashire
County ‘@?-
Council ('}‘\.;:;.Sg


http://mgintranet/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=914&MId=2916&Ver=4&info=1&bcr=1

g/ obed

Appendix 'A’

e To request that the Internal Scrutiny Committee establish as necessary joint working arrangements with district councils and
other neighbouring authorities.

e To draw up a forward programme of health scrutiny in consultation with other local authorities, NHS partners, the Local
Healthwatch and other key stakeholders.

e To acknowledge within 20 working days to referrals on relevant matters from the Local Healthwatch or Local Healthwatch
contractor, and to keep the referrer informed of any action taken in relation to the matter.

e To require the Chief Executives of local NHS bodies to attend before the Committee to answer questions, and to invite the
chairs and non-executive directors of local NHS bodies to appear before the Committee to give evidence.

e To invite any officer of any NHS body to attend before the Committee to answer questions or give evidence.

e To recommend the Full Council to co-opt on to the Committee persons with appropriate expertise in relevant health matters,
without voting rights.

e To establish and make arrangements for a Health Steering Group the main purpose of which to be to manage the workload
of the full Committee more effectively in the light of the increasing number of changes to health services.

The Work Programme will be submitted to and agreed by the Scrutiny Committees at each meeting and will be published with each
agenda.

Lancasbhire

)



6. obed

and new items added as required.

Health Scrutiny Committee work programme

Appendix 'A’
The dates are indicative of when the Health Scrutiny Committee will review the item, however they may need to be rescheduled

Topic Scrutiny Purpose Scrutiny Method | Lead Proposed Recommendations Progress
(objectives, evidence, Officers/organisations | Date(s)
initial outcomes)
Dementia Opportunities and Committee Dr Z Atcha, LCC 3 July 2018 The report be noted; -
Strategy challenges and
The Cabinet Member
for Health and
Wellbeing be invited to
a future scheduled
meeting of the Health
Scrutiny Committee to
present on the
development of a
housing strategy and
the ageing population.
Our Health Update on the future | Committee Dr Gerry Skailes, 3 July 2018, | 3 July:
Our Care of acute services in Lancashire Teaching 25 The update be noted; -
Programme central Lancashire Hospitals Foundation September
Trust and Sarah and Further updates be
James, Greater Preston presented to the Health
and Chorley and South Scrutiny Committee at
Ribble CCGs its scheduled meetings
in September and
Jason Pawluk, NHS November 2018;
Transformation Unit
Lancashire
County ‘@'@-
Council ('}&.;"ﬂ"?




08 abed

Appendix 'A’

Topic

Scrutiny Purpose
(objectives, evidence,
initial outcomes)

Scrutiny Method

Lead
Officers/organisations

Proposed
Date(s)

Recommendations

Progress

The importance of all
partners working
together on prevention
and early intervention
form a part of
developing the new
models of care for
acute services in
central Lancashire; and

Public information and
education be included
in the new model of
care for acute services
in central Lancashire.

Delayed
Transfers of
Care (DToC)
and Winter
2019/20

Update on
performance as a
whole system and
preparations for
winter 2019/20

Committee

Sue Lott, LCC and
Faith Button, Ailsa
Brotherton, LTH and
Emma Ince, GPCCG
and CSRCCG

6 November
2018 and

The considerable
improvement in the
reduction of Delayed
Transfers of Care
across Lancashire over
the past year be noted.

The staff of the County
council and in the NHS
whose commitment and
contributions to this
improvement had been
so significant be
commended.

Lancashire
County ‘@Z‘@-
Council ('?‘\.;:;.5{9




|8 ebed

Appendix 'A’

Topic Scrutiny Purpose Scrutiny Method | Lead Proposed Recommendations Progress
(objectives, evidence, Officers/organisations | Date(s)
initial outcomes)
A further update on Updates
Delayed Transfers of scheduled
Care be scheduled in 6 | for May
months' time for the "19
Health Scrutiny Steering
Steering Group and in Group and
12 months' time for the | Nov 19
Health Scrutiny Committee
Committee.
Transforming | Model of care for Committee Rachel Snow-Miller, 11 December | The performance -
Care CCG commissioned Director for 2018 and against the trajectory
(Calderstones) | learning disability Commissioning for All- for discharge rates,
beds age Mental Health, annual health checks
Learning Disabilities (AHC) and Learning
and Autism Disabilities Mortality
Reviews (LeDeR) be
noted.
A written report and
action plan on
performance against
these targets be
presented to the Health
Scrutiny Committee in
12 months' time
Lancashire
County ‘@Z‘@-
Council ('?gg




28 abed

Appendix 'A’

Topic Scrutiny Purpose Scrutiny Method | Lead Proposed Recommendations Progress
(objectives, evidence, Officers/organisations | Date(s)
initial outcomes)
Integrated Delivery of strategic Committee Dr Amanda Doyle, Neil | 5 February The Healthier
Care System | transformational plans Greaves and Gary 2019 Lancashire and South
- finance Raphael, Healthier Cumbria five year local
Lancashire and South strategy be presented
Cumbria to the Committee at its
meeting scheduled on
24 September 2019.
Lancashire Consultation Committee Gemma Stanion, 5 February The content of the -
and South Healthier Lancashire 2019 report be noted.
Cumbria and South Cumbria
Stroke The decisions to be -
Programme made about the Stroke
programme by
commissioners and
providers in the next
few months be noted.
The programme and -
work going forward be
endorsed.
Housing with Committee CC S Turner, Cabinet 2 April 2019 | The intention to -
Care and Member for Health and promote the
Support Wellbeing, CC G development of more
Strategy 2018- Gooch, Cabinet extra care schemes for
2025 Member for Adult older adults and flat
Services, Louise schemes for younger
Taylor, Joanne adults with disabilities
Reed/Craig Frost, be supported.
Sarah McCarthy LCC
Lancashire
County ‘@Z‘@-
Council ('?‘\.;:;.5{9




£g abed

Appendix 'A’

Topic Scrutiny Purpose Scrutiny Method | Lead Proposed Recommendations Progress
(objectives, evidence, Officers/organisations | Date(s)
initial outcomes)

The request for a task Completed
and finish group to the | (Steering
Health Scrutiny Group
Steering group to meeting
review the Housing with | April 2019)
Care and Support
Strategy in more detail
be considered by the
Health Scrutiny
Steering Group at its
earliest convenience.
Noted with concern the | -
discrepancies between
planned development
compared with the
estimated units needed.

Healthy New Committee Andrea Smith and 2 April 2019 | The achievements -

Towns — Andrew Ascroft, Public made by collaborative

Whyndyke Health, LCC, Alan working with partners

Garden Oldfield, Chair of WGV be acknowledged.

Village, Fylde
In order to support
Health in All Policies,
the Cabinet Member for
Health and Wellbeing
give consideration to

Lancashire
County ‘@Z‘@-
Council ('?‘s.;:g{?




78 abed

Appendix 'A’

Topic

Scrutiny Purpose
(objectives, evidence,
initial outcomes)

Scrutiny Method

Lead
Officers/organisations

Proposed
Date(s)

Recommendations

Progress

writing to all
Lancashire's district
councils, except Fylde
requesting them to
consider:

a) Embedding the
principles of Home for
Life Long Living
(adaptable homes
standards) into their
Local Plans.

b) Embedding the ten
Healthy Living
Principles into future
Section 106
Agreements.

c) Ensuring that multi-
user paths proposed in
future developments
cover all non-motorised
users and also extend
to the wider network.

Social
Prescribing

Overview and
consultation on social
prescribing

Committee

Linda Vernon, Healthier
Lancashire and South
Cumbria and Michelle

14 May 2019

Lancasbhire

County
Council




Appendix 'A’

Topic Scrutiny Purpose Scrutiny Method | Lead Proposed Recommendations Progress

(objectives, evidence, Officers/organisations | Date(s)
initial outcomes)

Pilling, East Lancs

CCG
Tackling Full Council Notice of | Committee Dr Sakthi Karunanithi, 14 May 2019
period poverty | Motion 8 October and Andrea Smith, LCC

2018 - a report on the
issue and how it can
best be addressed.

Gg obed

Future meeting dates:
2019/20 — 2 July; 24 September; 5 November; 10 December; 4 February 2020; 31 March; and 13 May.

2 July 2019 — a) Healthier Lancashire and South Cumbria ICS Five Year Local Strategy and b) Vascular Service Improvement

Lancashire
County ‘@'@-
Council ('}&.;"ﬂ"?




9g abed

Health Scrutiny Steering Group work programme

Appendix 'A’

Topic Scrutiny Purpose Scrutiny Lead Officers Proposed Recommendations Progress
(objectives, evidence, initial Method Date(s)
outcomes)
Fylde Coast Update on the work of Steering Wendy Swift, 15 June The Steering Group
Integrated the partnership Group Blackpool agreed that an item on
Care Teaching Healthy New Towns and
Partnership Hospitals the Whyndyke Garden
(ICP) Foundation Trust Village in Fylde be
and Andrew presented to a future
Harrison, Fylde meeting of the Health
and Wyre CCG Scrutiny Committee.
NWAS Update on new Steering Peter Mulcahy 19 September The Health Scrutiny
Government reporting Group and Julie Steering Group
standards and NWAS' Butterworth, recommends that;
new Nursing and NWAS
Residential Home Triage The Cabinet Member for
(NaRT) Tool. (Also Adult Services, officers
hospital pharmacy from Lancashire County
waiting times and delays Council, North West
for NWAS transport) Ambulance Service and
the lead commissioner
at Blackpool Clinical
Commissioning Group
give consideration to the
implementation of the
Nursing and Residential
Home Triage Tool within
all care homes across
Lancashire.
Lancashire
County ‘@%B-
Council (','/“';:;"S"?




/8 9bed

Appendix 'A’

Topic Scrutiny Purpose Scrutiny Lead Officers Proposed Recommendations Progress
(objectives, evidence, initial Method Date(s)
outcomes)
Vascular Improving quality and Steering Tracy Murray, 21 November (10:30) | The establishment of -
Service access to Vascular Group Healthier and move to the Lancashire and
Improvement | Services Lancashire and Committee in July South Cumbria Vascular
South Cumbria Programme Board and
the progress to date be
noted.
An update on the work
of the Programme
Board and the model of
care be presented to the
Health Scrutiny Steering
Group in six months'
time.
NWAS Update on Steering CC G Gooch, 21 November and The formal response be | -
recommendations from Group Lisa Slack and noted.
the Steering Group on Sumaiya Sufi,
the potential roll out of LCC Representatives from
NWAS' new Nursing and the North West
Residential Home Triage And Blackpool Ambulance Service,
(NaRT) Tool across CCG, NWAS Blackpool Clinical
Lancashire Care Homes. representatives Commissioning Group
and the County Council
be invited to attend the
next meeting of the
Health Scrutiny Steering
Group to consider how
the triage tool could be
progressed and rolled
out across Lancashire.
Lancashire
County ‘@'@-
Council ('?gg




8g abed

Appendix 'A’

Topic

Scrutiny Purpose
(objectives, evidence, initial
outcomes)

Scrutiny
Method

Lead Officers

Proposed
Date(s)

Recommendations

Progress

20 February 2019
(10:30)

The joint response be
noted.

East Lancs
CCG

Pennine Lancashire
Regulated Care
Transformation
Programme Update

Steering
Group

Adele Thornburn
and David
Rogers, East
Lancs CCG,
Sumaiya Sufi
LCC

16 January 2019
(10:30am)

The upskilling
programme for care
staff be explored
beyond insulin
administration and form
a part of the Pennine
Lancashire Regulated
Care Transformation
Programme's key area
of work for 2019/20.

Quality
Accounts

Preparations for
responding to NHS
Trusts Quality Accounts

Steering
Group

David Blacklock,
Sue Stevenson,
Healthwatch
Lancashire

20 February 2019

Responses to NHS
Trust Quality Accounts
be provided to
Lancashire Teaching
Hospitals NHS
Foundation Trust and
Lancashire Care
Foundation Trust.

Healthwatch be invited
to attend a future
meeting of the Steering
Group to share findings
and agree key points to
feedback. The timing of
which to coincide with

Scheduled
for
Steering
Group in
17 April

Lancashire
County ‘@Z‘@-
Council ('?‘s.;:g{?



68 9bed

Appendix 'A’

Topic Scrutiny Purpose Scrutiny Lead Officers Proposed Recommendations Progress
(objectives, evidence, initial Method Date(s)
outcomes)
when draft Quality
Accounts are received
and 17 April 2019 and the deadline with
which to respond.
Statements
issued to
That draft statements be | the Trusts
compiled from the
points highlighted at the
meeting and circulated
to the Steering Group
for final approval prior to
submission.
North West Role of senate Steering Prof. Donal 13 March 2019 That the role of the -
Clinical Group O'Donoghue and Clinical Senate and the
Senate Caroline Baines advice for Health
Scrutiny members be
noted.
Blackpool Consider request to Steering Sharon Dauvis, 13 March 2019 That the request to tba
Council's review mental health Group Blackpool review mental health
scrutiny services provided in A&E Council services provided in
review of departments across A&E departments
LCFT Lancashire across Lancashire be
accepted and carried
Update from Blackpool out by the Steering
Council on its review of Group.
mental health service
provision by LCFT.
Lancashire
County ‘@Z‘@-
Council ('?gg




06 9bed

Appendix 'A’

Topic Scrutiny Purpose Scrutiny Lead Officers Proposed Recommendations Progress
(objectives, evidence, initial Method Date(s)
outcomes)
Local Annual Review of Steering Tony Pounder, 17 April 2019 A briefing note be To be
Government Complaints: Group Angela circulated to the requested
and Social '‘assessments and care Esslinger, Kieran Steering Group — date to
Care planning' and 'other’ Curran, LCC reporting on how public | be
Ombudsman | (such as blue badges complaints would be confirmed
and disabled facilities dealt with effectively
grants) — systems, under the new
policies and procedures arrangements.
A report regarding the To be
impact of recruitment of | scheduled
additional occupational
therapists on waiting
times be presented to a
future meeting of the
Health Scrutiny
Committee.
Housing with | Consider request for a Steering - 17 April 2019 The request for a task -
Care and task and finish group to Group and finish group to
Support review the strategy review the Housing with
Strategy task Care and Support
and finish Strategy be refused.
group request
The Cabinet Members
for Adult Social Care
and Health and
Wellbeing provide
assurances to the
Health Scrutiny function
Lancashire
County ‘@Z‘@-
Council ('?gg




16 obed

Appendix 'A’

Topic

Scrutiny Purpose
(objectives, evidence, initial
outcomes)

Scrutiny
Method

Lead Officers

Proposed
Date(s)

Recommendations

Progress

that closer working
relationships are
established between the
county council and all
district councils to
ensure provision is in
place so that the
strategy can be
successful.

The county council
takes every opportunity
to respond to district
council consultations on
their forthcoming local
plans to encourage the
implementation of the
Strategy's intentions.

The final approved
Housing with Care and
Support Strategy be
circulated to all
members of the Health
Scrutiny Committee in
May 2019.

An update report on the
implementation of the
Strategy be presented

To be
scheduled

Lancasbhire

County
Council




26 9bed

Appendix 'A’

Topic Scrutiny Purpose Scrutiny Lead Officers Proposed Recommendations Progress
(objectives, evidence, initial Method Date(s)
outcomes)
to the Health Scrutiny
Committee in 12
months' time.
Head and Improving quality and Steering Tracy Murray, 14 May 2019 (2:30)
neck access to head and neck | Group Healthier
services Lancashire and
South Cumbria
Care For You: | Consultation Steering Silas Nicholls, 14 May 2019 (1:30)
Transforming Group Southport and
hospital Ormskirk
services and Hospital Trust
care for
people in
Southport,
Formby &
West Lancs
Rossendale Proposals Steering Kirsty Hamer and | Tbc
Birth Centre Group Christine
Goodman, East
Lancs CCG
NHSE — Overview and Steering Sally Napper, Tbhc
Quality relationships with Group NHSE, Lisa
Surveillance scrutiny Slack, LCC
Group
Childhood Progress report (invite to | Briefing note | Jane Tbc — Children's
immunisations | be extended to Chair and Cass?/Tricia Services Scrutiny
Deputy Chair of Spedding, NHS Committee
Children's Services England, Sakthi
Scrutiny Committee) Karunanithi, LCC
Lancashire
County ‘@9@-
Council @‘%‘:‘)




€6 abed

Appendix 'A’

Topic Scrutiny Purpose Scrutiny Lead Officers Proposed Recommendations Progress
(objectives, evidence, initial Method Date(s)
outcomes)
Health in All Embedding spatial Briefing note | Dr Aidan -
Policies planning and economic (and Kirkpatrick and
determinants Steering Andrea Smith,
Group) LCC
Scrutiny of e Sexual Health Briefing note | Neil - Briefing
Budget e Advocacy Kissock/Richard note
Proposals Services Hothersall, LCC received
2018/19 ° Learning, and
disability and circulated
autism: to
Enablement members
e Older persons in-
house residential
services: self-
funder fees
e Extra sheltered
care services
2019/20
Joint Health Developing terms of Steering With Blackpool Tbc after elections in
Scrutiny reference and Group Council, May — 19 June 20197
Committee for | composition Blackburn with tbc
the Darwen Council
Lancashire and Cumbria
and South County Council
Cumbria
Integrated
Care System
Lancashire

County 2
Council ('}gg




76 9bed

Appendix 'A’

Topic Scrutiny Purpose Scrutiny Lead Officers Proposed Recommendations Progress
(objectives, evidence, initial Method Date(s)
outcomes)
Work workshop on the Steering Healthier 19 June 2019 tbc
programming | priorities of the ICS and | Group with Lancashire and
workshop work programming open invite South Cumbria
to and
Committee Healthwatch?
Delayed Progress update and Steering Sue Lott, LCC 17 July 2019
Transfers of learning from ECIST Group Faith Button, (11:30am)
Care event. Ailsa Brotherton,
LTH and Emma
Ince, GPCCG
and CSRCCG
Our Health Update on the future of Steering Jason Pawiluk, 17 July 2019
Our Care acute services in central | Group NHS (10:30am)
Lancashire Transformation
Unit
Suicide Progress report/annual Steering Dr Sakthi September/November
Prevention in | update on outcomes set | Group Karunanithi/Clare | 20197
Lancashire out in the Logic Model Platt and Chris

Lee, LCC

Future meeting dates: 14 May, 19 June (workshop on the priorities of the ICS and work programming), 17 July, 11 September, 16
October, 20 November, 18 December, 15 January 2020, 19 February, 11 March, and 16 April.

Other topics to be scheduled:
e Review of Mental health provision in A&E departments across Lancashire

Integrated Care Partnerships (ICP) — Central Lancashire; Fylde Coast; Morecambe Bay; Pennine; West Lancashire
Chorley A&E, GTD Healthcare and CCGs - performance
NWAS - transformation strategy and future

Secondary Mental Health Services in Lancashire — Charlotte Hammond, LCC

Lancashire
County ‘@'@-
Council ('}&.;"ﬂ"?




G6 obed

Appendix 'A’
Disabled facilities grants and housing associations
Assess and identify better joint working opportunities that might exist between the county council and the NHS
(recommendation of the Local Authority Funding and Income Generation Task and Finish Group)

Lancasbhire

)



Page 96



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting Held on 2 April 2019
	4 Social Prescribing
	Appendix 1 Social Prescribing
	Appendix 2 Social Prescribing

	5 The issue of Period Poverty and how it can best be addressed
	6 Report of the Health Scrutiny Steering Group
	7 Health Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2018/19
	Appendix A


